
1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

My Hebridean Heritage 

 

 

by 

 

 

 

ALAN IAIN CAMERON 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

Contents  
INDEX OF NAMES AND RELATIONSHIPS IN FAMILY TREE .................................................................................................................4 

FAMILY TREE .....................................................................................................................................................................................7 

CHAPTER 1 ........................................................................................................................................................................................7 

Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................................8 

CHAPTER 2 ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

My Cameron Ancestors in Tiree ................................................................................................................................................ 10 

Some Additional Notes .............................................................................................................................................................. 15 

CHAPTER 3 ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 15 

My Parents ................................................................................................................................................................................ 15 

CHAPTER 4 ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

My Paternal Grandparents ....................................................................................................................................................... 18 

My Maternal Grandparents ...................................................................................................................................................... 18 

My Paternal Great Grandparents ............................................................................................................................................. 19 

Cameron and McLean ............................................................................................................................................................ 19 

My Paternal Great Grandparents ............................................................................................................................................. 20 

Munn and McFadyen ............................................................................................................................................................. 20 

My Maternal Great Grandparents ........................................................................................................................................... 20 

Curries and Smiths ................................................................................................................................................................. 20 

My Maternal Great Grandparents ........................................................................................................................................... 22 

Fraser and McFadyen ............................................................................................................................................................ 22 

CHAPTER 5 ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 24 

The McLeans of Grianal (Greenhill) Tiree .................................................................................................................................. 24 

CHAPTER 6 ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

George Campbell Hay ................................................................................................................................................................ 25 

CHAPTER 7 ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 27 

Family of Archibald & Margaret Cameron................................................................................................................................. 27 

My 2*Great-Grandparents .................................................................................................................................................... 27 

CHAPTER 8 ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 32 

Descendants of Donald Cameron & Catherine McKinnon ........................................................................................................ 32 

My 3*great grandparents ...................................................................................................................................................... 32 

CHAPTER 9 ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 43 



3 

 

Descendants of Archibald Cameron (1767) and Margaret McLean (1767) ........................................................................... 43 

My 4* Great grand-parents ................................................................................................................................................... 43 

APPENDIX 1.................................................................................................................................................................................... 55 

Cousins................................................................................................................................................................................... 55 

APPENDIX 2.................................................................................................................................................................................... 56 

What’s in a name? ..................................................................................................................................................................... 57 

APPENDIX 3........................................................................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Plan of Tiree showing Villages ....................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 



4 

 

INDEX OF NAMES AND RELATIONSHIPS IN FAMILY TREE 
 

PAT = Paternal Lineage Hi  John Cameron (Tiree)    MAT = Maternal Lineage ie Mary Fraser (Islay) 

Dates: < = before    > = after    ~ = about    ?? means date unknown    4* great-grandfather = gggg-grandfather etc 

CAMERON 

Alan Iain Cameron 1941 (me) 

Alasdair Fraser Cameron 1943 – 2018 (brother) 

Anna Mairi Cameron 1934 – 2015 (sister) 

Archibald Cameron 1767 (4*great grandfather) PAT 

Archibald Cameron 1810 – 1873 (2*great grandfather) PAT 

Donald Cameron 1785 – 1868 (3*great-grandfather) PAT 

Flory Cameron ~1785 (3*great grandmother) PAT 

John Cameron 1903 – 1951 (father) PAT 

John M C Cameron 1871 – 1922 (grandfather) PAT 

John McPhail Cameron 1900 – 1941 (uncle) PAT 

Robina Cameron 1906 – 1977 (aunt) PAT 

Hugh Cameron ~1740 - 1841? (5*great-grandfather) PAT 

Katherine Munn Cameron 1895 - 1927 (aunt) PAT 

Lachlan Cameron 1850 – 1907 (great Grandfather) PAT 

CAMPBELL 

Ann Campbell 1826 – 1915 (2*great grandmother) PAT 

Catherene Campbell < 1782 (3*great grandmother) PAT 

Catherine Campbell 1806 – 1857 (2*great grandmother) MAT 

Marion Campbell 1781 - 1845 (3*great-grandmother) MAT 

Mary Campbell 1753 - ?? (4*great -grandmother) MAT 

Neil Campbell 1790 – 1848 (2*great grandfather) PAT 

Neil Campbell 1761 - ?? (4*great-grandfather) PAT 

CURRIE 

Anne Currie 1873 -1954 (grandmother) MAT 

John Currie 1823-1887 (great grandfather) MAT 

Malcolm Currie 1791 – 1855 (2*great grandfather) MAT 

Mary Currie ?? - ?? (3*great-grandmother) MAT 

FERGUSON 

Elizabeth Ferguson 1799 – 1862 (2* great grandmother) MAT 

John Ferguson 1760-1845 (3*great-grandfather) MAT 

Peggy Ferguson 1784-1841 (3*great-grandmother) MAT 

FLETCHER 

John Fletcher 1781 - ??  (4*great-grandfather) MAT 

Mary Fletcher 1807 – 1889 (2* great grandmother) MAT 

FRASER 

Anne Fraser 1934 -1946 (cousin) MAT 

Annie Fraser 1907 – 1990 (aunt) MAT 

Donald Fraser ~1794-1870 (2* great grandfather) MAT 

Ian Fraser 1902 – 1964 (uncle) MAT 

Ian Fraser (Cousin) MAT 

John Fraser 1869 -1955 (grandfather) MAT 

Mary Fraser 1905 -1984 (mother) MAT 

William Fraser 1847 - 1933 (great grandfather) MAT 
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KENNEDY 

Donald Kennedy ~1784 - ? (3 *great grandfather) PAT 

Margaret Kennedy1809 – 1899 (2*great grandmother) PAT 

LOGAN 

Elizabeth Logan 1947 (wife) 

McCALMAN 

Catherine McCalman 1736 - ?? (4*great-grandmother) PAT 

McCOLL 

Alexander McColl 1750 - ?? (4*great-grandfather) MAT 

Margaret McColl 1770-1815 (3*great grandmother) MAT 

McCUARLIG 

Mary McCuarlig 1734 - ?? (4*great-grandmother) PAT 

McDONALD 

Archibald McDonald < 1782 - 1857 (3* great-grand-father) PAT 

Donald McDonald < 1755 (4*great grandfather) PAT 

Hugh McDonald 1729 - ?? (4*great-grandfather) PAT 

Margaret McDonald 1818 – 1872 (2* great grandmother) PAT 

Marion McDonald ~ 1784 - ? (3* great grandmother) PAT  

McDOUGALL 

Ann McDougall ?? - ?? (3*great-grandmother) 

McFADYEN, McFADDEN, McPHAIDEN 

Allan McFadyen 1800 – 1891 (2 * great grandfather) PAT 

Catherine McFadyen 1837 – 1928 (great grandmother) PAT 

Charles McFadyen 1781 - 1841 (3 *great grandfather) MAT 

John MacFadyen 1766 – 1816 (3* - great grandfather) MAT 

Martin McFadyen (4*great grandfather) PAT 

Peggy McFadyen 1844 1910 (great grandmother) MAT 

Finlay McFadyen 1804 1875 (2*great grandfather) MAT 

Martin McFadyen 1724 - ?? (3*great-grandfather) PAT 

McGILVRAY 

John McGilvray  1779-1841 (3*great-grandfather) MAT 

Mary McGilvray 1811 1878 (2*great grandmother) MAT 

McINNON, MCKINNON 

Flory McInnon abt 1745 (4*great grandmother) PAT 

Catherine McKinnon < 1755 (4* great grandmother) PAT 

Catherine McKinnon ~ 1790 - < 1851 (3*great-grand-mother) PAT 

Marion McKinnon 1719 – 1776 (6*great-grandmother) PAT 

McLEAN 

Archibald McLean 1788 – 1855 (3 *great grandfather) PAT 

Catherine McLean 1746-1792 (5*great-grandmother) PAT 

Catherine McLean ?? - ?? (4*great-grandmother) PAT 

Charles McLean 1741 – 1792 (5*great-grandfather) PAT  

Flora Ann McLean 1854 – 1943 (great grandmother) PAT 

Flora McLean 1784 – 1885 (3* great grandmother) PAT 

Flory McLean (1741 - ?) 5*great-grandmother PAT 

Janet McLean ~ 1790 (3* great grandmother) PAT 

John McLean ~ 1746 (4* great grandfather) PAT 

John McLean 1717-1779 (6* great-grandfather) PAT 

Neil McLean 1826 -18??  (2*great-grandfather) PAT 

Neil McLean of Ardgour <1690 – 1723 (7*great-grand-father) PAT 
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Mary Mclean ?? - ?? (4*great grandmother) MAT 

Margaret McLean 1767 - ? (4*great-grandmother) PAT 

Margaret Mclean 1730 - ?? ( 4*great-grandmother) PAT 

McMILLAN 

Marion Brown McMillan 1908 – 1978 (aunt) MAT 

MUNN 

Alexander Munn 1693 – (5*great-grandfather) PAT 

Amelia Munn 1874 -1954 (grandmother) PAT 

Donald Munn 1764 - ? (3*great grandfather) PAT 

Farquhar Munn 1707 - ? (4 *great grandfather) PAT 

Janet Munn 1772 – 1857 (3 * great grandmother) PAT 

John Munn 1834 – 1837 (great grandfather) PAT 

Neil Munn 1810 – 1867 (2* great grandfather) PAT 

SINCLAIR 

Ann Sinclair 1794 – 1881 (3 * great grandmother) PAT 

SMITH 

Angus Smith ?? - ?? (3*great-grandfather) MAT 

Donald Smith 1801 – 1889 (2* great grandfather) MAT 

Mary Smith 1835 -1916(2 * great grandmother) MAT 

STEWART 

Alexander Stewart ~1790 (3 * great grandfather) PAT 

Amelia Stewart 1812 - 1891 (2* great grandmother) PAT 
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FAMILY TREE 

CHAPTER 1 
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Introduction 
 

As far back as I can remember, I was aware of my Hebridean Heritage and have always been proud to own it as part of my genetic 

make-up. My father was from the island of Tiree and my mother from the island of Islay. Both were fluent Gaelic speakers and 

only learned English when they entered the primary school. Indeed, my father studied Gaelic at Glasgow University and was 

awarded the prize in Gaelic in 1923. It was a book - a translation from a Greek tale translated into Gaelic and called “Togail na 

Tebe” or the Gaelic version of the “Thebaid of Statius” and not by any means the easiest of reading matter in any language! 

However, I took all of this for granted, and while I enjoyed my annual holidays in Islay and met many relations, I did not, for a 

number of reasons, take a great deal of interest in my forebears until much later in my life when, like many others, I became 

interested in tracing my roots as far back as I could. This has been a long trail - sometimes frustrating, sometimes surprising but 

has all along been a revelation of how these hardy people rose above the trials of harsh climate and poverty with dignity and 

humanity. They were millers and crofters, distillery workers and gamekeepers. They were ordinary people who achieved 

extraordinary things throughout their lives and I hope to share with you, their culture and society and how through hard work and 

education, they became teachers and lawyers, poets and preachers. 

My name is Alan Iain Cameron. Alan is for Allan McFadyen who was my great great grand-father and someone who was greatly 

admired by my father and Iain (Gaelic for John) was my father’s name and my grandfather’s name and a name which recurs many 

times in my family tree. In fact, not only was my father called Iain, so also was his brother. My father, the younger of the two was 

Iain Beag or Little John and his older brother was Iain Mor or Big John. The main surnames of my Tiree ancestors were Cameron, 

McLean, Munn McKinnon and McFadyen and on my mother’s side they were Fraser, Currie and McFadyen. There are obviously 

other names and branches in the tree as a result of families moving to and from the islands and of course as we explore the 

diaspora, we find that our Scottish family names are lost through marriage into European, Asian and African families. The potato 

famine of the late 1840s sparked massive emigration mainly to Canada and America and I have traced close connections to these 

countries and to the Antipodes. Every day, I find new connections in New Zealand and Australia, most of whom do not have any 

of the names I have mentioned although I must admit there are many McLeans, McPhees and McKinnons in New Zealand to 

whom I can trace a family connection. 
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Some of my McLean relations emigrated to the Canadian prairies of Manitoba and Saskatchewan; others landed in Nova Scotia 

and moved on from there to become prominent citizens contributing to the development of nationhood in Canada and USA. On 

a visit to western Canada some years ago, I heard about the wild McLean Boy’s Gang - three brothers (who all met their end 

before reaching the age of 25) who, after the death of their father (a fur trader) set out to burn pillage and murder in the area. The 

tour guide suggested that they might be from Tiree. I researched this and found that they were, in fact, from Mull but close enough, 

maybe, to be related. 

 

A Cameron whose DNA profile overlaps with my own is Malcolm Cameron who emigrated to Ontario in 1850 from Tiree where 

he was born. Although from fairly humble origins he went on to be a prominent merchant and politician in Bruce Co., Ontario. 

We will meet Malcolm later. 
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CHAPTER 2 
My Cameron Ancestors in Tiree 

 

I can trace my Cameron ancestors back to the early 1700s with some degree of confidence although the records at that stage are 

very unreliable. Principally, you are dependent on Old Parish Records (OPR) in which births, christenings (baptisms) and 

marriages were recorded by the parish minister. The problem is that there were lapses and these records are frustratingly 

incomplete. In addition, the records do not contain deaths. The registering of births, marriages and deaths was only formalised 

throughout Scotland in 1855. Thereafter, there is a good and complete record although, on occasion, the handwriting of the 

Registrar is difficult to decipher.  

Census returns began in 1841 and at 10-year intervals thereafter. They are always at least 100 years old (I suppose to protect the 

anonymity of living people and so the last Census which you can access is 1911. We must now wait with excitement for the 

release in 2021 of the 1921 Census. The Censuses are the records of families or at least all those living in the same house and are 

extremely useful for relating people. They are, of course, only a record of those people living in the house at the time. If some of 

the men-folk were working away from home or daughters in service, they should be recorded in the place where they were working 

and residing at the time. Ages, in these documents, tend to be inaccurate. Sometimes, they were rounded up and at other times 

rounded down. I have one relative, Hugh Cameron, who is listed as aged 100 in the 1841 census. Subsequent research suggests 

that he may have been about 80 at the time. 

 

In some parts of Argyll, the Duke of Argyll conducted a census of his tenants and this was the case in Tiree in 1779 and 1767 and 

there was another smaller scale census in 1792. These are extremely useful and have been transcribedi. Again, such censuses as 

those, only record who was in the house at the time of the census. With the non-recording of deaths, one is required to use these 

census returns to interpolate deaths ie present on the 1841 census but not on the 1851 suggests a death in the interim. However, it 

may be that the person or family had moved to the mainland for employment or, as was the case throughout the 17th, 18th and 

19th and even 20th centuries, there was mass migration to Canada, USA and Australia and New Zealand. A positive outcome of 

this mass migration, is that their descendants are very conscientious at chasing up their own roots and there is a great deal of 
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useful information on sites such as Ancestry.comii1 and many others, details of which I have put in Appendix 1 at the end of the 

book. For recording this information, I currently use Family Tree Maker 2017 UK Edition2iii which is available as an Apple 

Mac version or for Microsoft. However, of all the available sources, the best and most accurate is often within your own family. 

Family Bibles traditionally recorded the births, marriages and deaths within the family. Sadly, most of those will have been lost 

forever and that is why I have felt it important to record to the best of my ability my own roots and, in passing, some other 

important branches of my particular family tree. Other important sources of information, are the gravestones which can often give 

information about where your ancestor stayed, who their parents were and any children. There are often inscriptions. My favourite 

is, “GUS AM BRIS AN LA” which means till the break of day or less literally “Until we meet again”. 

 

The oldest Cameron ancestor whom I can trace is Hugh Cam(m)eron and only through his “registering” the birth of a son 

Archibald Cam(m)eron in 1767. Incidentally, I have only seen one or two occasions when Cameron was spelled with two “m”s 

and was probably an idiosyncracy of the minister of the time who kept the parish records. I have partial information that will take 

me further back to the family of the Clan Chiefs but the information I have is not reliable. However, what I do have is a fairly 

strong DNA link with other Tiree Camerons which suggests that we are related, perhaps through an illegitimate child. Without 

any conclusive evidence, I have to regard this as a brick wall. Unfortunately, I have no birth date evidence or marriage or death 

for Hugh only that he registered the birth on behalf of himself and Flory McLean. Where they came from, I have not yet found 

out and although this search reveals new truths every day, I have been searching for Hugh’s roots for more than twenty years 

without success. At the time of Archibald’s baptism in 1767, the parents lived in Baugh, Tiree although other evidence suggests 

that they were from the Cornaig / Kilmoluaig area of Tiree. 

Archibald was my great-great-great-great-grandfather or to use the common convention 4*great grandfather. 
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Archibald’s baptism is recorded as follows: 

 

Archibald was married on 3rd February,1784 to Margaret McLean and the spelling of Cameron in the parish register reverted from 

Cammeron to the original. (This is interesting especially since the name Cameron is from two Gaelic words Cam- meaning 

twisted or wry and sron - meaning nose. So, our name derives from the nickname of a former clan chief or leader who had perhaps 

a twisted or even broken nose). 

Margaret McLean was born 8th March 1767 in Cornaigbeg to Charles and Catherine Mclean. Charles’s year of birth was 1741 

and Catherine’s was 1746. Charles’s family link back to the McLeans of Ardgour. We can speculate that Hugh Cammeron, 

Archibald’s father was born sometime in the late 1730s or early 1740s. Archibald and Margaret had a large family – all born at 

Cornaigmore. Without any evidence, I am led to assume that Archibald and Margaret were crofters or cottars. 

Their children were: Donald 15th Feb 1785, Flora 16th Apr. 1789, Christy 16th Apr. 1789, Christiana 12th Jun. 1791, Mary 29th 

Aug. 1793, Effy Dec. 1795, John Apr. 1798, Annabella Nov. 1800, Catharene Sept 1803, Marion Mar. 1807. 

My line descends from Donald Cameron  

(15 Feb 1785 – 9 Nov 1868) : Cornaigmore. Donald Cameron was 

my 3*Great-Grandfather 

Donald married Catherine McKinnon (Birth abt. 1790 – Death: 

Before 1851) : Cornaigmore 

 

Donald & Catherine had a large family as follows: all at 

Cornaigmore 

Archibald Cameron (01 Aug 1810), Mary (16 Mar 1812), John (13 Jun 1814), Sarah (30 Jun 1816), Margaret (20 Nov 1818), 

Flora (24 Jan 1821), Ann, (13 Apr 1823), Christina (28 Nov 1825), Hector (23 Mar 1828), Catharene (10 Aug 1831) 

 

22/12/21767 

Was baptized Archd Cammeron, son to Hugh Cammeron and Flory McLean in Baugh 

 

Hugh Cam(m)eron c1740 

 

Archibald Cameron 1767 

 

Donald Cameron 1785 
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Archibald Cameron (01/08/1810 – 08/08/1873) was my 2* great- grandfather  

Archibald mar. Margaret McDonald of Crossigair (19 Sep 1818 07 Apr 1872) on 02 Jan 1839 

They had a large family as follows:  

John Cameron (03 Nov 1838), Catherine Cameron, (30 Dec 1840), Donald Cameron (29 Sep 1842), Marion Cameron (abt.1845), 

Archibald Cameron (1847), Lachlan Cameron (20 Apr 1850), Christian Cameron (1851) Isabella Cameron (13 Oct 1855) Neil 

Cameron (14 Oct 1857) Mary Cameron (24 Jun1861) 

Lachlan Cameron (20/04/1850 – 21/04/1907) was my great-grandfather 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hugh Cam(m)eron c1740  Page 

Archibald Cameron 1767  Page 

Donald Cameron 1785   Page 

Archibald Cameron 1810  Page 

Lachlan Cameron 1850   Page 
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Lachlan Cameron (my Great-grandfather) was born in Kilmoluaig. Interestingly, his name does not appear on 

the parish register. This may have been an error or the fact that there was no minister or that the family had broken 

away from the established Church of Scotland. The Free Church was formed as a result of the Disruption in 1843. 

However, Archibald (1847) was listed on the OPR but not Christian. By the time the older children were born the 

1855 National Registry was established. Lachlan 

married Flora Ann McLean (b 16 Jan 1854) of 

Grianal (Greenhill) who remarkably lived till 17 

May 1944 so theoretically, I could have met this 

90-year-old great-grandmother as I was born in 

1941. Lachlan and Flora had one son: John 

McLean Campbell Cameron who was born on 

16th November 1871 in Kilmoluaig. Lachlan and 

Flora Ann were married in Glasgow on 11 Aug 

1876. 

John McLean Campbell Cameron (my grandfather) was born on 16th November 1871 in Kilmoluaig, Tiree and 

died on 29th January 1922 in Cornaigmore. He married Amelia Munn on 30 Mar 1903. They had four children:  

Catherine Munn Cameron, (28 Dec 1895 – 19 Feb 1927) 

John McPhail Cameron, (22 April 1900 – 03 Nov 1941) 

John Cameron (21 Nov 1903 – 18th Feb, 1951) – my father 

Robina Mary Alexandra Buchanan Cameron (18 Apr 1906 – 24 Aug 1977) 

 

             

Hugh Cam(m)eron c1740 

Archibald Cameron 1767 

Donald Cameron 1785 

Archibald 1810 

Lachlan 1850 

John McLean Campbell Cameron 1871 

 

 

Hugh Cam(m)eron c1740 

Archibald Cameron 1767 

Donald Cameron 1785 

Archibald 1810 

Lachlan 1850 



15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This is the lineage of Cameron males from Hugh Cameron born abt. 1740 ?? to Alan I Cameron. 

Some Additional Notes:  

Generation 1 

Alan Iain Cameron, (me) son of John Cameron MA and Mary Fraser was born on 21st September, 1941 in Southend, Argyll. He 

married Elizabeth Logan, daughter of Daniel Logan and Sarah Rae Collie on 3rd August 1968. Elizabeth was born on 12 April 

1947 in Inverness. 

CHAPTER 3 
My Parents 
 

John Cameron, son of John McLean Campbell Cameron and Amelia Munn was born on 21 Nov 1903 in Scarinish, Isle of Tiree. 

He died on 18 Feb 1951 in the Southern General Hospital, Glasgow After graduating from Glasgow University with an MA 

degree, he taught Maths and Latin at Bowmore on the Island of Islay and then was appointed Headteacher of Ardbeg Primary 

School. In 1934 he was appointed as Headteacher of Southend Primary School, near Campbeltown where he remained until his 

death, aged 47, in 1951. John Cameron was very active in the community where his knowledge of Gaelic and phonetics was 

useful to Nils Holmer from Upsala University who was studying the Argyllshire Gaelic dialects. He was appointed to the Kintyre 

Committee on Onomastics (the study of place-names) He was also the Gaelic tutor of the Southend Gaelic Choir, the village 

Librarian, popular as the “Fear an Taigh” (Chairman) at village concerts and ceilidhs. He was a devout Christian and much 

respected member of the community. In the 1911 census return John was listed as Johnnie (Iain beag in Gaelic) 
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He married Mary Fraser daughter of John Fraser and Anne Currie on 08 Jul 1932 in Kildalton Parish Church, Isle of Islay. Mary 

Fraser was born on 24 May 1905 in Ardbeg, Isle of Islay. She died on 11 Apr 1984 at the Cottage Hospital, Campbeltown, Argyll. 

After School Mary trained as a secretary at Skerry’s College in Glasgow and used to tell us how she practised her shorthand skills 

by taking down the minister’s sermon in the Church. She was the first Gaelic speaking clerkess / secretary of An Comunn – the 

Gaelic Organisation. She had also been secretary to the manager of Lagavoulin Distillery. After the death of my father, she was 

initially the receptionist at the Argyll Hotel Campbeltown and latterly was school secretary at Dalintobair Primary School in 

Campbeltown.  

Mary and John had three children: Anna Mairi Cameron1 (14 Aug 1934 -02 Dec 2015) born in Ardbeg and brought up at the 

Schoolhouse, Southend, Argyll. 

Alan Iain Cameron2 (myself) (21 Sep 1941) born and brought up in Southend, Argyll. 

Alasdair Fraser Cameron3 (24 Jun 1943 : Southend -14 Nov 2018 : Bishopriggs) born and brought up in Southend, Argyll.  

1. Anna M Cameron was a talented singer and pianist who competed regularly at the local and annual Mods – singing, 

playing, reciting verse and conversing in Gaelic. On my first year singing at the Mod (aged 7) in June 1949, I won the 

competition for solo singing for boys under the age of 12. (I think I was the only competitor) but Anna won countless 

competitions across the spectrum. Such was the success of the Camerons (mainly Anna), that the guest artist at the final 

concert – the well-loved Scottish tenor Kenneth McKellar sang, “The March of the Cameron Men” in recognition of their 

winning so many prizes. 

She was regarded very highly as a student at Campbeltown Grammar School after which she trained as a Radiographer at 

Glasgow Western Infirmary. Thereafter, she joined the QARANC (The Queen Alexandra Royal Army Nursing Corps) at 

Aldershot. There she met Terence Alexander Nicholls who was in the Dental Corps and they were married on 21 Dec 1956 

in Overbury, Glos. They had two sons – Kevan John Nicholls and Douglas Stuart Nicholls. (Incidentally, Terry’s best man 

was his brother, Graham Nicholls who was at the time a successful steeple-chase jockey with Peter Cazalet, trainer, of the 

Queen Mother’s stable). Terry and Anna had spells in Germany but were mostly based at Aldershot. They separated about 

1970 and Anna moved to Kilmarnock and then settled in Inverness. Kevan Nicholls (dob 26 Aug 1958 : Aldershot.- Jan 2006 

: Inverness) who married twice (1) Cassandra ? and  (2) Lorraine Munro (01 December 1957 at Leith Registry Office) with 

whom he had three children – Ryan John Nicholls, (20 Sep 1985) Lisa Anna Nicholls (28 Aug 1987) and Dean Tony Nicholls, 
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(16 Aug 1990) all resident in Edinburgh. Lisa has children. Kevan and Lorraine separated in ?? and Kevan died of heart 

failure in ?? 

Anna and Terry’s second son - Douglas Nicholls lives in Gloucester and works in IT. He was a very talented sportsman 

played rugby and as a hockey player, played at county level. 

2.  Alan Iain Cameron Alan was born in the Schoolhouse, Southend on 21st September 1941. It was during the war years 

and he was so skinny at birth that he was  described as like a skinned rabbit. After leaving Campbeltown Grammar 

School, in 1959, he attended Glasgow University from which he graduated with an Honours BSc in Chemistry.in 1963. 

A year at Jordanhill Teacher Training College was followed by teaching posts at Campbeltown Grammar School 1964-

1967 followed by an appointment as Head of Science at Invergordon Academy 1967-1973, head of Chemistry at Mackie 

Academy, Stonehaven 1973-1977 and Depute Headmaster at Selkirk HS 1977-1981. In September, 1981, Alan took up 

the post of Rector at Ellon Academy from which he retired in 1996. The roll in 1981 was just over 1000 pupils and in 

1996 was 1715. Thereafter, Alan enrolled at Aberdeen University and completed an Honours MA in Gaelic Language 

and Celtic Civilisation in June 2000. From 1999 until 2008, Alan was Councillor for Ellon Town – the latter 6 years as 

Leader of the opposition. For most of this time he was on the Board of Aberdeen College, Chair of the Audit Committee 

and Chairman of the College’s company which was involved in training staff for the oil industry. Alan was also involved 

in many community activities including the establishment of the Trust to manage Ellon Castle Gardens. 

Alan Iain Cameron and Elizabeth Margaret Cameron were married in Tain Parish Church on 03 Aug 1968. 

Elizabeth (Cameron) Logan (12 Apr 1947 : Inverness) trained as a Primary School teacher at Aberdeen College and 

taught in Invergordon Selkirk, Balmedie, Ellon and Pitmedden. She is a keen accordionist and plays with the Ythan 

Fiddlers. 

They had three children: 

John Alan Cameron (18 Oct 1969) – (18 May 1991). John graduated from Aberdeen University with a law degree 

(LLB) in 1990 and died as the result of a car accident in Australia in 1991. He is interred in the cemetery in Ellon. 

Morag Cameron (20 Jun 1972) studied Art at Duncan of Jordanstone College of Art, Dundee (BA Hons) and Gray’s 

School of Art, Aberdeen (MA). She spent more than 20 years in Hong Kong and Macau as an Interior Designer, latterly 

as Director of Furnishings and Fabrics for the Wynne Corporation. 
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Angus Stuart Cameron (22 Nov 1975) studied Spanish and teaching English as a Foreign Language at Heriot Watt 

University (BA) including a year studying and teaching in Asuncion, the capital of Paraguay. He is employed in tourism. 

Alan’s parents were John Cameron (1903-1951) and Mary Fraser (1905-1984) They were married in Kildalton Parish 

Church, Isle of Islay on 08 Jul 1932. 

Elizabeth’s parents were Daniel Logan 23 Jan 1913 : Edinburgh – 14 Aug 1996 : East Ilsley, Berks) and Sarah Rae Collie 

(10 Nov 1908 : Tain, Ross-shire) – 21 Mar 1969 : Invergordon). They were married in Greenock on 29 Sep 1941 

CHAPTER 4 
My Paternal Grandparents 
 

John McLean Campbell Cameron. was Alan’s grandfather and was born on 16 Nov1871 at Kilmoluaig, Tiree and died on 29 

Jan. 1922. He was the son of Lachlan Cameron (20 Apr 1850 : Kilmoluaig – 20 Apr 1850 : Cornaigmore) and Flora Ann McLean 

(16 Jan 1854 : Grianal – 17 May : 1944 Cornaigmore)  

He married Amelia Munn (21 Jun 1874 : Kirkapol – 21 Apr 1954 : Scarinish) (my grandmother) on 30 Mar 1903 : Anderston, 

Glasgow.) Amelia Munn was the daughter of John Munn (17 Jan 1834 : Kilmoluaig - 15 Jul 1909 : Cornaigbeg) and Catherine 

McFadyen (07 Mar 1873 : Scarinish -26th Oct 1928 : Scarinish). John and Catherine were not married. She was the widow of 

John McPhail (merchant) and they had two sons – Charles McPhail and Norman (later John) McPhail. John Munn was married 

to Flora McPhail (26 Mar 1845 : Cornaig – 29 May 1914 : Lochgilphead). They had three daughters, Christina, Ann and Nancy. 

Christina (08 May 1880-18 Jul 1961) and Donald McLean (Jul 1880 : Cornaigbeg-  Roy’s Cemetery Fullarton, Canada) had 

one son Malcolm (Calum Salum) (21 Jun 1904 : Salum – 19 Nov 1971 : Salum). Calum McLean, Salum had a General Merchant’s 

shop at Salum and sold everything from a needle to an anchor. I remember being in the store with my aunt Robina. She asked for 

a piece of cheese which he solemnly cut from the slab with a rusty wire which he cleaned on his sleeve. Are we not now too 

obsessed with Health & Safety? 

My Maternal Grandparents 
 

My maternal grandfather was John Fraser. He was born and brought up in a tiny hamlet to the north-west of Potnahaven in Islay. 

He was born 27 Aug 1869 in Cladadh and died 28 Sept 1955 in Kilmeny, Islay. His father – William Fraser was a shepherd who 

was from Boleskine on the east side of Loch Ness who came to join his brother – Thomas, Shepherd at Kilillan in the Gruinard 
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area of Islay. My grandfather’s mother was Peggy McFadyen from Cladadh, Potnahaven. John’s parents were not married and it 

is understood that William, who was quite young at the time emigrated to New Zealand with the intention that Peggy and John 

would join him. Unfortunately, we do not know why this did not happen. The census returns suggest that John was looked after 

by his uncle – John McFadyen and for most of his working life my grandfather worked as a stillman in Ardbeg Distillery. 

Anne Currie was my grandmother born 10 Nov 1873 Oa, Islay and died 29 Mar 1954 Ardbeg, Islay. They were married on 17 

Oct 1901 in Merkland Street, Partick, Glasgow and for as long as I can remember lived in Wembley Cottage, Ardbeg They had 

one son. – Iain Fraser (uncle Iain) (02 Oct 1902 : Ardbeg – 11 Sep 1964 : Ballygrant) who was a gamekeeper first of all at 

Farkin (Port Ellen), then Kildalton Estate and latterly at Dunlossit Estate Port Askaig. He married Marion (Morag) McMillan 

(Auntie Morag) 13 Jan 1908 -04 Sep 1978 on 09 Feb 1933 in Steven Memorial Church, Govan. Although she was brought up in 

Clydeside, her parents, Duncan McMillan and Mary Lochhead were both from Islay. Ian & Morag had two children Ann Currie 

Fraser who died of meningitis aged 12 when they lived in Farkin and Iain Fraser who, after military service with the Argyll & 

Sutherland Highlanders, drove lorries and buses for Bells of Ballygrant and was well-known in the community. 

John & Annie Fraser also had two daughters – Mary Fraser (my Mother) and Annie Fraser (my Aunt). Annie married Willie 

Fisher from Fauldhouse and they had one son William who is married and farms in Essex. William has two daughters and 

grandchildren. 

My Paternal Great Grandparents  

Cameron and McLean 
 

Lachlan Cameron 20 Apr 1950 : Kilmoluaig, Tiree – 21 Apr 1907 : Cornaigmore, Tiree was the son of Archibald Cameron and 

Margaret McDonald. He married Flora Ann McLean (16 Jan 1854 :  Grianal, Tiree – 17 May 1944) on 11 Aug 1876 in Glasgow. 

The census records show that Lachlan originally worked on the family crofts but latterly moved to Glasgow Partick and was 

employed as an engine fitter. He died at the age of 57 from phthisis (which is sometimes called TB) whereas his wife died in her 

91st year. Flora Ann’s sister - Nancy was married to Archibald McLean – the Cornaig Miller who therefore was the husband of 

a 2nd great aunt of mine. We are all related or so it would seem! 
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My Paternal Great Grandparents  

Munn and McFadyen 
Amelia’s mother was Catherine McFadyen (07 Mar 1837 : Scarinish, Tiree – 28 Oct 1928). She was a daughter of Allan 

McFadyen (Jun 1800 – 23 Jun 1891) and Amelia Stewart (12 Mar 1812 : Musselburgh – 25 Mar 1891 : Scarinish) (my 2*great-

grandparents). I believe that Amelia Stewart’s father came to Tiree as an Exciseman. 

Catherine McFadyen and John Munn (17 Jan 1834 : Kilmoluaig – 15 Jul 1909 : Cornaigbeg) were Amelia’s parents and my 

great-grandparents. I believe that John was a joiner and wheelwright and Catherine a dressmaker. I have details of the Munn 

family as follows: John’s parents were Neil Munn (Jun 1810 : Heanish -22 Dec 1867 Kilmoluaig) and Margaret Kennedy (Abt 

1809 – 23 Feb 1899). Neil’s parents were Donald Munn (1764 - ?) and Flory Cameron (abt 1785 - ? ) (my 3*great-grandparents). 

A further connection is that Allan McFadyen’s father – John McPhadden (1766-1816) married Janet Munn (1772-1857), daughter 

of Farquhar or Farquand Munn. Farquhar was the Great-grandfather of John Munn (1764) and therefore the 4*great-grandfather 

of me. Both Farquhar, who was described as a Land Agent and his wife Catherine McCalman died in Galveborg, Sweden. 

Farqhuar’s father was born in 1670 and was my 5th Great Grandfather. 

My Maternal Great Grandparents 

Curries and Smiths 
 

1. My Grandmother (Annie ms Currie) was the daughter of  

2. John Currie (1823 : Kilchoman - 26 Nov 1887 : Kildalton) and Mary Smith (01 Dec 1835 : North Knapdale 

-.1916, : Port Ellen). The Curries had been long time tenant farmers in Carnduncan in the Gruinard district of 

Islay and the Smiths had come from North Knapdale, in mainland Argyllshire - firstly to Jura and then to Islay 

and were shepherds. John and Mary had the following family. Malcolm1 Archibald2 Marion3 Donald4 

Betty5 Mary6 John7 Anne8 (My Grandmother) 

2.1. Malcolm Currie (13 Jan 1857 : Kilchoman, Islay – 10 Jun 1928 : Govan, Glasgow) married Margaret 

McLean (?? – 10 Mar 1936 : Govan) on 24 Jun 1898. I have no record of children. 

2.2. Archibald Currie (04 Aug 1958 : Cairnduncan, Kilchoman - 23 Aug 1926 : Howard, Queensland) 

married Charlotte Matilda Harriet Giles (04 Apr 1964 : Broweena, Queensland).  They had one 

daughter and one son, 

2.2.1. Charlotte married Arthur Percival Woodhouse and they had a daughter  

2.2.1.1.1. Gladys Mary Woodhouse who married Alexander Snow (Ivanov) and they had a 

daughter  

2.2.1.1.1.1. Patricia Gladys Snow (who is my second cousin once removed). 



21 

 

2.2.2. John Currie (06 Apr 1899 : Howard, Queensland – 29 Apr 1954 : Cairns, Queensland. I have no 

record of family. 

2.3 Marion Currie (28 Aug 1861 : Oa, Islay – 1937) married Alexander Johnston (26 Aug 1861 : Oa, Islay 

– 21 Jun 1946 : Partick, Lanarkshire). They had the following children :  

2.3.1 Alexander Johnston, 

2.3.1.1 Annie Johnston (02 Nov 1892 : Glasgow – 07 Apr 1975 : Rothesay) married James 

McDonald (1888 : Glasgow – 02 Nov 1946, Rothesay) They had three sons,  

2.3.1.1.1 James McDonald (1919),  

2.3.1.1.2 Archibald McDonald (1921)  

2.3.1.1.3 Kenneth McDonald 1923 : Glasgow – 1991 Barrhead) married Mary Hendry (1922 

: Isle of Harris) and they had a son: 

2.3.1.1.3.1 Archie McDonald (1956, : Rothesay) who married Susan McKean (1960 : 

Rothesay) on July 1984 in Rotterdam. Archie is a second cousin once removed 

of Alan. 

2.3.1.2 Mary Smith Johnston 

2.3.1.3 Robert Johnston,  

2.3.1.4 Marion Currie Johnston, 

2.3.1.5  Betsy Johnston,  

2.3.1.6 Martha Johnston Hamilton,  

2.3.1.7 Agnes Ferguson. Johnston 

2.4 Donald Currie (07 Mar 1963 : Oa – 03 Apr 1919) married Elizabeth Morrison (1867 : Paisley -1947 : 

Victoria, Australia) They had a daughter, 

2.4.1  Elizabeth (10 Aug 1900 : Paisley) 

2.5 Betty Currie (07 Mar 1866 : Oa -10 Mar 1873 :Kintra) 

2.6 John Currie (10 Jul 1869 Oa - ??) married Bella McFadyen (1876 – 08 Jun 1955 : Esknis Farm, 

Ballygrant, Islay) . They had a family of 5 sons and two daughters  

2.6.1 John (08 Mar 1902 : Port Ellen -1987 : Lochgilphead) married Mary Cunningham McKechnie 

(18 Sep 1903 – 1982 Lochgilphead) I have no further information yet on John and Mary. 

2.6.2 b Neil (1904 – 1981) married Margaret Campbell. I have no further information yet on Neil and 

Margaret. 

2.6.3 Archie (1907 – 1967, Glasgow) married Elizabeth Pollock (17 Oct 1910 – 2004, Eastwood, 

Renfrewshire). I have no further information yet on Archie and Elizabeth. 
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2.6.4 Mary (1912 Kildalton & Oa - ??) married Duncan T McAlpine () They had a son and a daughter  

2.6.4.1 Isobel Islay McAlpine (1946) Isobel married Donald Campbell and they had 2 sons and a 

daughter. 

2.6.4.2 Kenneth Alpin McAlpine (1950 : Dunoon)  

2.6.5 Malcolm (31 Oct 1914 : Port Ellen – 20 May 1981 : Ayton Farm, Ballygrant) married Rose Queen 

Ashenhurst (25 Apr 1920 : Harthill – 18 April 1978 : Esknis Farm). I remember meeting Malcolm 

and Rose at Esknis in the 1950s, 

2.6.6 Donald (12 Dec 1917 – 16 Mar 1987) married Margaret Buchanan Sommerville. Donald farmed 

Finlaggan Farm for many years and was a noted breeder of Ayrshire cattle.  

2.6.7 Grace (1921 – 1929) 

My Maternal Great Grandparents 

Fraser and McFadyen 

1. William Fraser (15 Feb 1847 : Boleskine, Inverness-shire – 1933 : Oamaru, New Zealand) was my 

mother’s Grandfather and therefore my great-grandfather. His parents were Donald Fraser (abt 1794.: 

Boleskine – 30 Apr 1870 : Boleskine) and Catherine Campbell (1806 – 26 Jan 1857 : Dunain). I have 

identified (tentatively) Hugh Fraser and Ann Fraser as Donald’s parents. William proved to be a major 

brick wall for me until recently when I was chasing up some McLean relatives in New Zealand, I chanced 

upon William and his other family. The story, according to my cousin, is that William emigrated (we 

thought to Canada) with the intention that his wife Peggy McFadyen and his son John Fraser would 

follow at a later date. Apparently, a large container of goods etc had arrived in Islay from William but the 

family were too poor to access it because of the import duty. William had followed his brother, Thomas 

Fraser to Islay to manage the sheep which replaced the crofters during the Clearances.  Thomas had a 

large family. One of his daughters Catherine Fraser (7 Jan 1869 : Kilinallan) married Alexander 

McDougall (1869) on 19th June 1901 in St Rollox, Glasgow. Their daughter Mary McDougall (01 Jul 

1904 – 18 Dec 1963) was a 2nd cousin of my mother. I remember visiting Mary on several occasions and 

her husband Dugald McQueen worked on the CalMac ferry from West Loch Tarbert to Islay. They had 

a daughter, Rena who married Neil McArthur from Campbeltown and had one son Neil (3rd Cousin once 

removed of Alan). Their son Angus, (b 1938) was married and died young They had one daughter, Jane. 

Returning to William Fraser (16 Feb 1847 : Boleskine – 1933 : Oamaru, New Zealand)  He and Peggy 

McFadyen (1844 : Cladadh, Portnahaven – 8th February 1910, Ardbeg) were the parents of my 

grandfather. Peggy had a daughter – Maggie McFadyen (1871 : Lanark, Glasgow – 12 Oct 1947 : 
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Ballygrant, Kilmeny). Maggie married Donald Fletcher (1871 - 09 Jan 1951 : Ballygrant, Islay). William 

Fraser and Peggy McFadyen were my great-grandparents. 

3 Peggy’s parents were Finlay McFadyen Feb 1804 : (Cladadh, Kilchoman – 03 Apr 1875 : Cladadh, 

Kilchoman) and Mary McGilvray (abt 1811 : Gravach, Kilchoman – 04 Apr : Cladadh, Portnahaven). Their 

family:, Donald6, Ann7, Marion8. 

3.1 Charles (abt 1829 : Gravach, Kilchoman – 10 May 1912 : Old Kilpatrick, Dumbarton) married Rachel 

McKinnon (16 Jul 1832 : Kilchoman – 26 Jan 1909 : Old Kilpatrick) Their son J 

3.1.1 John McFadyen (abt 1864, Glasgow) married Anne Jamieson and their son  

3.1.1.1 Ian Jamieson McFadyen was born in 09 Dec 1905 in Dalmuir.  

3.1.2 Rachel McFadyen (daughter of Charles McFadyen and Rachel McKinnon married Finlay 

McCallum on 10 Jul 1896 in Old Kilpatrick. They had a son  

3.1.2.1 Finlay McCallum who died in 1954. 

3.2 Alexander (06 Jun 1832 : Kilchoman – after 1896) married Ann McFadyen (1837 : Easdale – before 

1898) on 06 Feb 1860 in Glasgow. Their daughter,  

3.2.1 Annie McFadyen married Archibald McArthur and their daughter 

3.2.1.2 Annie McArthur married Charles Shields whose son Tom was a columnist in the Glasgow 

Herald. 

3.3 John McFadyen (~1834 : Kilchoman - >1877) brought up my grandfather. 

3.4 Dugald McFadyen (05 Jun 1862  : Glasgow – 08 Oct 1936 : Govan) married Mary Ann McKechnie. 

Family:  

3.4.1 (Annie McFadyen (1890 -1940), 

3.4.2  Catherine McFadyen (1894),  

3.4.3 Alexander McFadyen 1891 married Mary J M Crosby (1892 – 1982). They had family: 

3.4.3.1 Dugald (1914),  

3.4.3.2 Elizabeth (1915), 

3.4.3.3 Alexander (1920) 

3.4.3.4 Ann, (1922), 

3.4.3.5 Kathleen (1924) married John Herbert Simpsons (1926), 

3.4.3.6 Kenneth (1925-2009) married Elizabeth Heurter (1914 – 1996),  

3.4.3.7 Jessie (1928 – 1942), 

3.4.3.8 Neil Robert (1932 – 2001) married “Private” with children and grandchildren. 

3.5 PeggyMcFadyen (1844 : Portnahaven – 08 Feb 1910 : Ardbeg) My Great-grandmother 
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3.6 Donald (1845 : Portnahaven : 20 Dec 1918 : Lanarkshire) married Jessie Spence 

3.7 Ann (1848-1907) 

3.8 Marion (1856 – 08 Apr 1922 : Neilston, Renfrewshire) married William Morrison (1880 -1907) in 

Neilston, Renfrewshire. They had family:  

3.8.1 Donald (1880 -1907), Mary ~1882,  

3.8.2 Flora (1883 – 1949),  

3.8.3 John (Jack) (1887-1908),  

3.8.4 Marion (1890 – 1917)  

3.8.5 William (1890 -1970),  

3.8.6 Annie (1895),  

3.8.7 Findlay (1895 -1940) married Dolina Sinclair (1893 -> 1923) on 12 Oct 1923 in Neilston, 

Renfrewshire) 

CHAPTER 5 
The McLeans of Grianal (Greenhill) Tiree 
 

This is the family of Flora Ann McLean (Great Grandmother of Alan) 

Flora Ann McLean (wife of Lachlan Cameron) was the daughter of Neil McLean (15 Feb 1830 – 18??) and 

Ann Campbell (11 Jul 1826-28 Feb 1915). They were not married 

Neil does not appear on the 1861 Census nor is he to be found in the ScotlandsPeople database. Which leaves 

several possibilities: a. he died before 1855 or he emigrated. He was only 25 when Flora Ann was born and this 

seems a likely possibility. What is more puzzling is that his son Archibald was born on 01 Jan 1857 and his twin 

daughters Ann and Nancy were born on 01 Jan 1857. In the 1861 Census, Flora Ann, Ann, and Archibald are 

staying with their mother Ann Campbell aged 34 and living with Ann Campbell’s mother (described as a cottar) 

However the birth certificate for Ann McLean 04 Oct 1860 at Cornaigmore shows father Neil MacLean – 

Tacksman, (illegitimate) and mother Ann Campbell signed by Neil McLean, father, Greenhill, Tiree. 

Flora Ann’s sister, Nancy McLean was married to Archibald McLean (the Cornaig Miller) and she had a 

brother – Archibald McLean who was born 01 Jan 1857 and of whom I have no further details.  

Flora Ann’s sister Ann was born 04 Oct 1860 and married Archie McArthur (02 Sep 1844 – 1890) 

Neil McLean – Flora Ann’s father (15 Feb 1830) (My 2*great-grandfather) was born at Grianal and lived with 

Ann Campbell (11 Jul 1826 -28 Feb 1915 : Cornaigbeg). 

Neil was the son of Archibald McLean (May 1788 : Kirkapol - 19 Dec 1855 : Grianal) who married Flora 

McLean (Aug 1784 : Gribun, Mull – 19 Aug 1885) on 28 Jan 1813. They had the following family as well as 

Neil – Lachlan (1815 - 01 Sep 1893 : Brock, Ontario), Catherine, Flora, Donald, Marion, Robert, Ann, Mary 

and Hector. 
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Mary McLean (08 Mar 1832 Grianal – 1929 NZ) married John McFarlane (10 May 1815 Heylipol – 15 May 

1881 Balinoe, Tiree). They had the following family: John Archibald, William Archibald, James Alexander, 

Donald Neil, Duncan, Mary Flora.  

John Archibald McFarlane (21 Sep 1866 Balinoe died in NZ). He married Amelie Charlotte Knowles (1868-

1920). They had 3 children Mary Eden McFarlane, Evelyn Fiona McFarlane and Milly McFarlane. 

Archibald McLean (May 1788 - 19 Dec 1855) was the son of John McLean and Flory McFadyen They also 

had a daughter Effie.( 1800.-.20 Apr 1885.: Ontario) 

Effie McLean (1800 – 1885) married Donald Cameron (11 Jul 1804 - 08 May 1888 Ontario) on 11 Apr 1821 

in Tiree. Their son Malcolm emigrated to Ontario in 1851 and married Sarah McLean and it appears that Effie 

& Donald followed them out to Brock Co, Ontario. It appears that Effie McLean is a fourth aunt of Alan I 

Cameron. 

The parents of Archibald’s wife, Flora McLean (Aug 1784 : Gribun, Mull – 19 Aug 1885 : Grianal) were 

Hugh Mclean of Airdchraoishnish and Marion McLean (my 4th great grandparents). Marion’s parents were 

Donald McLean of Raodel, Mull and Anna McLean of Torloisk (my 5th Great grandparents). Donald’s 

parents were Capt Allan McLean (1662-1715) and Margaret McLean of Drimnin (my 6th Great 

grandparents). 

 

CHAPTER 6 
George Campbell Hay 
 

I have put this chapter in because until quite recently I was unaware that I was connected to this much admired 

poet who came from Tarbert which is about 50 miles from my own birth place. 

Mary Smith who was married to my maternal great-grandfather, John Currie was the daughter of Donald Smith 

(29 Oct 1801 : Ardbeg, North Knapdale – 19 Jul 1899 : Grainel, Kilchoman). The Smiths had moved to Islay via 

Jura in the early 19th C. Donald’s wife was Mary Fletcher (16 Nov 1807 : Glenorchy and Inishail – 24 Jan 1899 

: Grainel, Kilchoman) Mary’s parents were John Fletcher and Mary McLean. John & Mary were my great-

great great grandparents. As well as a daughter Mary (my great-great-grandmother), they had a daughter Jean 

Fletcher (31 Jul 1809 : Carsaig, North Knapdale – 11 Dec 1902 ; Grainel, Islay) Jean married Archibald 

Campbell (09 Feb 1806 : North Knapdale - 09 Jan 1888, : Grainel). They had a son Duncan Campbell (1832 : 

Knapdale) who married Jessie Mc Millan in 1881 at Tarbert, Lochfyne. Duncan and Jessie Campbell had a 

daughter Catherine who married John McDougall Hay on 29th Oct 1909 in Knap House, Tarbert, Loch Fyne. 

John was a minister of the Church of Scotland and an author. John and Catherine Hay had a son George Campbell 

Hay who was born on 08 Dec 1915 in Elderslie and died 26 Mar 1984 George Campbell Hay was a 3rd cousin, 

once removed of mine. 
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Notes  

Rev Duncan Campbell who was John McDougall Hay’s father-in-law was born in North Knapdale in 1832 but 

by the 1851 census he was listed as in Kilchoman, Islay as aged 19 year. Initially he farmed with his father in the 

Gruinard area of Islay. He trained for the ministry and in 1877 was ordained in Kilfinnan Free Church. He died 

in 1891 exhausted by his labours in a large parish with three churches delivering services in English and Gaelic. 

Duncan was a 1st cousin three times removed of mine. 

Rev John McDougall Hay (1879-1919) was born in Tarbert Lochfyne and was an outstanding student at Glasgow 

University. He graduated MA and became a teacher in Lionel School Isle of Lewis but his heart was in the 

ministry. He was licensed in the presbytery of Inverary in 1908 and ordained a minister of the parish of Elderslie, 

on 12th May 1909. He died there in 1909 from Tuberculosis. He was also a prolific writer and his best-known 

novel Gillespie was published in1914 to great acclaim. His second and last book, Barnacles was, according to 

Angus Martin,iv not received well since it painted too realistic a picture of the people of his native Tarbert. 

George Campbell Hay was only 4 when his father died. The Campbell in his name is after his mother Catherine 

Campbell. He was a very talented child and at the age of 10 enrolled in John Watson’s College in Edinburgh - a 

school that provided places for sons of the manse. From there, he won a scholarship to Fettes College and then to 

Corpus Christi College, Cambridge in 1934. However, it is as a poet in English, Scots, Gaelic, French, Greek and 

Swedish that he is best remembered. Here is a short extract from a poem: I have chosen this from a large selection 

since it brings back memories to me of my native Kintyre. 

 KINTYRE 

 Leaving those men, whose hearts 

are hearths that have no fire, 

my greetings westward go 

to lovely long Kintyre 

 

Her uplands draw my thoughts 

till over lands and seas 

my dreamings go like birds 

that seek the leafy trees. 

 

Of names sweet to the mouth, 

of names like the sounding sea, 

for my delight alone 

I’ll write this litany. 

 

Rὸaig and Airigh Fhuar, 
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words from some fairy tale 

The Grianan and Davaar 

Carradale, Sunnadale. 

 

These on my mouth, I walk 

among grey walls and chill, 

these are a flame to warm, 

a sainv against all ill. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 7 
Family of Archibald & Margaret Cameron 

My 2*Great-Grandparents 
 

1.Archibald Cameron (1810), Cornaigmore and Margaret McDonald (1818) Crossigair were married on 

28 Feb 1838. They had the following family: Donald3,  Marion4,  Archibald5,  Lachlan6,  Christian7,  Isabella8,  

Neil9,  Mary10. 

1.1 JOHN CAMERON (03 Nov 1838 : Cornaigmore – 16 Mar 1908 : Kilmoluaig) married Marion 

McKinnon (19 Dec 1838 : Kilmoluaig -25 Mar 1901 -:-Kilmoluaig) on 16 Apr 1862 at Cornaig, Tiree. 

Marion’s parents were Neil McKinnon and Janet Beaton. John died of Chronic heart disease. He 

gave as his occupation in the 1891 census as a fisherman living at Kilmoluaig with his wife, Marion 

and daughters Marion (17), Mary (14) Flora Ann (9) scholar and Katie 2 months. Also staying with 

them was Alexander Cameron (73) a widower and pauper. In the 1881 census he gave as his 

occupation Railway porter and Lorryman at which time he lived in Salisbury Street, Gorbals, 

Glasgow. The informant of his death was Archibald Kennedy, son-in-law. John was a 2*great uncle 

of mine. His wife, Marion does not appear on the 1901 census. They had the following family: 

Maryd, Flora Anne, and Katief. 

1.1.1 Janet Cameron married Colin McLean (1861) on 02 Oct 1897 in Kilmoluaig Colin McLean 

was a sailor and they had the following family: 
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1.1.1.1 Marion 1896 Tiree,  

1.1.1.2 Colin 1898 Tiree and  

1.1.1.3 John 1899, Kinning Park, Glasgow.. 

1.1.2 Margaret (28 Jun 1864 – 16 Mar 1908 : Kilmoluaig At the time of the 1871 Census she 

was living at Cornaigmore. 

1.1.3 Christina (1870 Tiree - 27 Apr 1955, Glasgow) married Archibald Kennedy (29 Jul 1862 : 

Kilmoluaig – 06 May 1951, Tiree) on 31 Jan 1894 . They had the following family:  

1.1.3.1 Marion Kennedy (04 Dec 1895 : Kilmoluaig)  

1.1.3.2 John Kennedy (1898 - 1898), 

1.1.3.3 Donald Kennedy (16 Oct 1900 : Kilmoluaig – 1956) 

1.1.3.4 Hector Kennedy ( 26 Apr 1902 -1956) 

1.1.3.5 John Cameron Kennedy (31 May 1904 : Kilmoluaig - 04 Apr 1968 : Tiree) 

1.1.3.6 Marion McKinnon Kennedy (08 Oct 1906 : Kilmoluaig) 

1.1.3.7 Archibald Kennedy (1910) 

1.1.4 Mary (1877 – 09 May 1891). In 1881 Census she lived in Salisbury Street, Gorbals, 

Glasgow and in 1891 in Kilmoluaig, Tiree. 

1.1.5 Flora Ann (1882 : Kilmoluaig 05 Mar 1923 : Govan) married Joseph Cape on 08 Jan 

1907 in Glasgow 

1.1.6 Katie (1891) No further information 

1.2 CATHERINE CAMERON (30 Dec 1840 : Kilmoluaig - 1855 : Kilmoluaig) 

1.3 DONALD (29 Sep 1842 : Kilmoluaig - ??) 

1.4 MARION (1845 : Kilmoluaig - 27 Mar 1879 : Kilmoluaig) 

1.5 ARCHIBALD (1847 : Kilmoluaig - 24 Jan 1924 : Kilmoluaig) married Euphemia McKinnon (03 May 

1854 : Kilmoluaig, Tiree – 037 Mar 1912 : Kilmoluaig). They had the following family 

1.5.1 Euphemia (1870 : ) Kilmoluaig 

1.5.2 Donald (27 Oct 1875 : Kilmoluaig) 

1.5.3 Mary (27 May 1877 : Kilmoluaig – 21 Jan 1947 : Crossapol) married 31 May 1895 455 St 

Vincent St., Glasgow) married Donald McCorquodale (31 Mar 1861 : Carinis - 1934 

Crossapol). They had the following family;  

1.5.3.1 Effie(1905 – 1987) married Hugh McDonald(1889 : Glasgow). I have no further 

information.  

1.5.3.2 Gillespie (1912 – 12 Aug 1986 : Crossapol) 

1.5.3.3 Ann C. McCorquodale (01 Aug 1914 : Kilmoluaig – 16 Mar 1979 : Chalfont St 

Peter, Buckinghamshire) married Walter William Chapman (20 Mar 1915 : 

Cricklewood – 05 May 1964 : Amersham) on 07 Jun 1940 in St Cuthbert’s Church, 

Hampstead, London. Walter was an architect. Donald (22 Dec 1902 :  - 24 Jul 
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1975 : Balemartin) married Charlotte Lamont (17 Mar 1912 – 16 May 2001 : 

Tiree) in 1940. They had the following family:  

1.5.3.3.1 Donald McCorquodale (1942 : Kilmoluaig – 1942 : Kilmoluaig) 

1.5.3.3.2 Margaret McPhail McCorquodale (25 Mar 1942 : Tiree – 13 Sep 1997 

: Glasgow) married Richard Steventon McIntyre on 07 May 1966 in St 

Columba’s Church, Glasgow. 

1.5.3.3.3 Archibald Cameron McCorquodale (25 Dec 1898 : Tiree - 08 Dec 1986 

Port Appin) married Jeannie Bell Irvine (~1897 - 1927 : Glasgow) on 

18 Jun 1920 in Parkgrove Terr, Glasgow. They had the following 

family:  

1.5.3.3.4 Archibald Cameron McCorquodale (07 Apr 1927 : Glasgow - ?? : 

Brampton, Ontario) who married Peggy Smith and they had  

1.5.3.3.4.1 Lena McCorquodale  

1.5.3.3.4.2 Jean McCorquodale. 

 

1.5.4 John Cameron (20 Jan 1880 : Kilmoluaig - 24 Nov 1952 : Lochgair) married Agnes Smith 

Young (Uddingston) on 14 Apr 1915. John was educated privately and graduated in 

divinity from Glasgow University. He also funded the training of his younger brother, 

Hector who also graduated in Divinity. Rev John Cameron served his flock in Kilmichael 

Glassary for many years where he was known affectionately as Ministear Muic because 

he had one of the largest Glebes in Scotland associated with the manse and he kept 

livestock on the glebe. I believe that when he retired to Lochgair, he was provided by 

the Council with a piece of land to continue his love of crofting. John, who is a 1st cousin 

twice removed of Alan and Agnes, had two sons and three daughters:-  

1.5.4.1 Euphemia McKinnon Cameron(18 Feb 1916 – 28 Jan 1999 : Argyll) married Dr 

Turner McLardy (16 Apr 1914, : Strathaven, Scotland - 09 Jan 1988 : Barnstaple, 

Massachusetts) on 02 May 1940 They emigrated on 04 Jan 1950 immigrating to 

US on 13 Jul 1950. Dr McLardy was Director of Pathology at Boston State 

Hospital. Family:  

1.5.4.1.1 David Cameron McLardy, David married Paloma ? and they had 

1.5.4.1.1.1 Hanna,  

1.5.4.1.1.2 Sandy 

1.5.4.1.1.3 Macarena. 

1.5.4.1.2 Diana Fay McLardy  

1.5.4.1.3 Peter McLardy. Peter (1948) married Sylvie Jacqueline Ninio (1942 – 

2010). Peter is a 3rd Cousin of mine. Family:  

1.5.4.1.3.1 Namaste Ninio McLardy,  

1.5.4.1.3.2 Joey Ninio McLardy  
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1.5.4.1.3.3 Benjamin Ninio McLardy.  

1.5.4.2 Seumas Young Cameron (25 Aug 1917 – 07 Jun 1936 : Campsie Hills - accident) 

1.5.4.3 Jessie Russell Cameron (24 Aug 1919 - 1995) married Terence Laurie Monaghan 

Coombs (1921 - 31 Mar 2002) They had a daughter 

1.5.4.3.1 (private) Monaghan Coombs who married John Robertson Hendry 

(13 Jan 1952 : Stirling – 08 Jul 2013 : Bishopriggs) They had a daughter  

1.5.4.3.1.1 (private) Hendry 

1.5.4.4 Gilleasbeag Cameron (1922 - 03 Aug 1942). He was a leading aircraftman in the 

Royal Air Force Volunteer Reserve, having postponed his MA degree (1940-41) at 

Glasgow University. His grave is at the Runnymede Memorial, England. 

1.5.4.5 Agnes Mary Cameron  I have no details but remember that she worked as a 

housekeeper in Glasgow  

 

1.5.5 Archibald Cameron (24 Feb 1883) He is in the 1891 Census as aged 8. There is another 

Archibald Cameron born to this family on 15 Apr 1899 and he is the only Archibald on 

the 1901 census aged 2. However, the other Archibald would have been 18 and possibly 

left home or he may have died in the period between 1891 and 1901. 

1.5.6 Ann Cameron (25 Feb 1887 : Kilmoluaig) married William Cameron (~1885 : Lochalsh) 

on 04 Dec 1908 in Govan, Glasgow. They had  

1.5.6.1 Donald Cameron (1909 : Govan)  

1.5.6.2 Euphemia Cameron (15 Feb 1910 : Kilmoluaig). Euphemia is listed as having 

registered as a nurse in Fort William on 28 Aug 1931. 

1.5.7 Neil Cameron (21 Aug 1888 : Kilmoluaig) 

1.5.8 Margaret Cameron (1890 : Kilmoluaig - 07 Nov 1965 : Woodilee Hospital, Glasgow) 

1.5.9 Rev Hector Cameron (26 Mar 1893 : Kilmoluaig-27 Dec 1950 : The Manse, Kilfinnan, 

Argyll) married Mary McKinnon (~ 1898 ; Sleat, Skye) on 09 Nov 1925. Hector was 

educated at Cornaig School, privately and at Glasgow University. He was licensed by the 

Presbytery of Glasgow on 20 Dec 1922 and inducted on 07 May 1923. On 12 Nov 1925, 

he transferred to Knapdale and Kilfinnan 23 Dec 1930. On 06 Nov 1925, he married 

Mary McKinnon, daughter of John McKinnon and Annie McLean in Station Hotel, Kyle of 

Localsh. They had no family. Hector was a 1st cousin twice removed of Alan 

 

1.6 LACHLAN CAMERON (1850 -1907) was my great grand-father.(dealt with extensively already 

Page 12) 

1.7 CHRISTIAN CAMERON (Feb 1851 : Kilmoluaig – 04 Jan 1927 : Glasgow) married Hector 

McKinnon (13 May 1845 : Kilmoluaig – 09 Aug 1903 : Glasgow) on 08 Feb 1878 in Glasgow 

(CofS). Family:- 
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1.7.1 Alexander McKinnon (06 Feb 1883 : Glasgow – 08 Aug 1931 : Vancouver) Private 

Alexander McKinnon served with the 23d Battalion,C.E.F. (Quebec City) during WW1. 

“Lest we forget”. 

1.7.2 Hector McKinnon (28 Jul 1885 : Kilmoluaig – 11 Jan 1886 : Kilmoluaig) 

1.7.3 Margaret McKinnon (20 Jul 1885 : Kilmoluaig - 1887 : Kilmoluaig) 

1.7.4 Mary McKinnon (25 Jul 1887 : Glasgow - 1888 : Kilmoluaig) 

1.7.5 John McKinnon (14 Nov 1888 : Glasgow - 1960 : Glasgow) 

1.7.6 Christina McKinnon (18 Mar 1891 : Kinning Park, Glasgow – 1891 : Glasgow) 

1.7.7 Mary McKinnon (31 Aug 1878 : Glasgow – 1878 Glasgow) 

1.7.8 Donald Cameron McKinnon (15 Oct 1879 : Glasgow - 1945 - Glasgow) 

1.7.9 Archibald McKinnon (01 May 1881 : Glasgow - 1964 : Glasgow) 

1.8 ISABELLA CAMERON (13 Oct 1855 : Kilmoluaig – 27 Mar 1879 : Kilmoluaig) Death was 

from Pthisis and informant was her brother, Archibald. 

 

1.8 NEIL CAMERON (14 Oct 1857 : Kilmoluaig – 20 Nov 1899 : Duntocher) married Elizabeth 

Douglas (1856 : Old Monklands, Lanarkshire – 05 Oct 1903 : Shotts) on 30 Nov 1877 in 

Crosshouse, Kilmacolm. They had the following family:  

1.8.1 Archibald Cameron (1878 : Kilmacolm - ??) 

1.8.2 Walter Douglas Cameron (1880 : Greenock – 09 Jan 1950 :Coatbridge) married 

Margaret Lees Cowan (1891 – 28th May 1960) on 13th May 1917 in Blythswood, 

Glasgow. They had two daughters, 

1.8.2.1 Margaret Cowan Cameron (1920) married James Curtis and they had a son  

1.8.2.1.1 James (07Jul 1937 : Coatbridge) who married Rachel I Cunningham () 

on 07 Jul 1961.  

1.8.2.2 Rachel Anderson Cameron (13 Jun 1921 – 2003: Coatbridge) married George 

Johnstone (1899) on 15 Sep 1962 in Pollock.  

1.8.3 Neil Cameron (1881 ; Inchinnan - 24 Apr 1952 : Stevenston) married Sarah Miller (1884) 

1.8.4 Elizabeth Cameron (1833 : Inchinnan)  (illegitimate) 11 Sep 1898. {Elizabeth Cameron, 

Farm Servant, daughter of and residing with Neil Cameron (Ploughman), Fulwood, 

Houston. Defender: William Wilson, Farm servant (with Hugh White) Locherside by 

Johnstone. 

1.8.4.1  Elizabeth Douglas Wilson Child’s date of birth: 11 Sep 1898 Sheriff Court – 

Paisley, Renfrewshire.}  

1.8.5 John Cameron (1884 : Kilbarchan, Renfrewshire) 

1.8.6 Catherine Cameron (1890)Lachlan Cameron (1894 : Houston & Kilellan – 29 Apr 1917) 

1.8.7 Donald Cameron (1899 : Houston & Kilellan) 

1.9 MARY CAMERON (24 Jun 1861 : Kilmoluaig) 
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CHAPTER 8 
Descendants of Donald Cameron & Catherine McKinnon  

My 3*great grandparents 
 

1. Donald Cameron (15 Feb 1784 : Cornaigmore – 09 Nov 1868 : Cornaigmore) married Catherine 

McKinnon (~ 1790 : Cornaigmore : <1851) on 30 Jan 1810 in Cornaigmore. They had the following 

family: 

1.1. ARCHIBALD CAMERON (15 Feb 1810 : Cornaigmore – 08 Aug 1873 : Cornaigmore) married 

Margaret McDonald (19 Sep 1918 : Crossigair - 07 Apr 1872 : Cornaigmore) on 28 Feb 1838. 

These are my 2*great-grandparents and are detailed on page ? 

1.2 MARY CAMERON (16 Mar 1812 : Cornaigmore - 16 Nov 1859 : Cornaigmore) married Donald 

McEachran ( Feb 1811 : Kilninian, Mull – 1871 : Tiree) on 31 Jan 1839 on 31 Jan 1939 in Tiree. 

They had the following family:  

1.2.1 Mary McEachran (04 Oct 1840 : Crossapoll) married Archy McEachran 19 Feb 1928 – 

02 Feb 1901 : Cornaigbeg). They had the following family: 

1.2.1.1  Archie McEachran (1865) 

1.2.1.2 Peggy McEachran (1867) 

1.2.1.3 Flora McEachran (1876 : Cornaigbeg) married John Campbell (1863) They had the 

following family: 

1.2.1.3.1 Archibald Campbell (21 Nov 1897 – Feb 1987 : Norwich)  

1.2.1.3.2 Hugh Campbell (1898) 

1.2.1.4 Alexander McEachran ~ 1873 : Tiree)  

1.2.1.5 Bella McEachran (1878) 
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1.2.1.6 John McEachran (1880) married Mary Mclean (27 Dec 1874 ; Kenovay – 21 May 

1953:  Renfrewshire) They had  

1.2.1.6.1 Janet Ann McEachran (10 Feb 1915 – 05 Aug 2007 : Tiree) married Alex 

Wilson (23 Feb 1914 : Kilwinning - 18 Apr 1973 Paisley) on 03 Apr 1945. I 

have no further details. 

1.2.2 Lachlan McEachran (28 Oct 1838 : Crossapoll - ??) married Catherine McMillan (26 Dec 

1838 : Kilkenneth Tiree) on 21 Oct 1863 in Glasgow. They had the following family:  

1.2.2.1 Mary (07 Aug 1863)  

1.2.2.2 Catherine McEachran (01 Feb 1865 : West Lake Ainslie, Inverness NS) married 

Steven McDougall (Oct 1861 : West Lake Ainslie NS - 16 May 1945 : Judique, 

Inverness NS). They had 10 Children: 

1.2.2.2.1 Christie McDougall (Oct 1908),  

1.2.2.2.2 Ronald McDougall (1900), 

1.2.2.2.3 Daniel Joseph McDougall (1898-1940), 

1.2.2.2.4 Hugh Allan McDougall (1897),  

1.2.2.2.5 John Angus McDougall (1893), 

1.2.2.2.6 Catherine Elizabeth McDougall (1904) 

1.2.2.2.7 Margaret Ann McDougall (1902), 

1.2.2.2.8 Angus McDougall (1904)Julie McDougall (1894-1922), 

1.2.2.2.9 Mary Catherine McDougall (1891). All were born in Judique, Inverness, 

Nova Scotia. I have no further information on this branch. 

1.2.3 Flora (1874 :Glasgow) 7 years later at the 1881 census she was at Moss, Tiree. 

1.2.4 Mary 

1.2.5 Hugh McEachran (06 Apr 1845 : Tiree) 

1.2.6 Hector McEachran (14 Aug 1852 : Crossapoll, Tiree) 

1.2.7 Marion McEachran (1855-1855 : Moss) 

1.2.8 Donald McEachran(01 Oct 1852 : Crossapoll) I have no further information. 

1.2.9  John Dougald McKechnie (11 Jun 1849 : Tiree – 24 Aug 1928, Dunedin, Otago, NZ) 

married Margaret McDougall (1849 : Govan – 16 Jul 1914 : Dunedin) on 01 Mar 1872 in 

Glasgow. NOTE: the name change from McEachran to McKechnie. They had  

1.2.9.1 Mary Cameron McKechnie (1878 : Glasgow – 05 Jun 1940 : Roxburgh, Otago, NZ) 

married John William Perriam (13 Apr 1870 -02 Feb 1923 : Roxburgh, Otago, NZ) 

in 1904 in NZ. Mary and John had the following family: 

1.2.9.1.1  Lindon Robert Perriam (28 Feb 1908 : Dunedin – 1986) He married Una 

Elizabeth Sinclair (21 Apr 1911 : Dunedin – 1997) 

1.2.9.1.2 Jack Colclough Perriam (01 Jul 1906 – Oct 1980 : Oamaru, NZ) He 

married Olive Annie McFeeters (15 Jan 1907 : Balclutha, Otago NZ – Oct 

1974 : Oamaru NZ) 
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1.2.9.1.3 Donald Bethune Perriam (02 Aug 1910 : Cromwell, Otago, NZ - 12 Apr 

1987 : Dunedin), He married Christina Mary McKinnel (06 Mar 1914 : 

Mount Benger, OtagoNZ – 02 Mar 1993 : Dunedin, Otago). They had a son  

1.2.9.1.3.1 Neil Ivan Perriam (03 May 1937 : Roxburgh, Otago, NZ – 10 Jul 

2014 : Dunedin, Otago, NZ) 

1.2.9.1.4 Frederick John Perriam (15 Aug 1895 : Lawrence – 1919 : As Suways, 

Egypt), 

1.2.9.1.5 Alexander Charles Perriam (Jul 1912 : Cromwell, Otago,NZ – 21 Sep 

1985 : Dunedin, Otago, NZ). He married Esther Lawrence (24 Feb 1916 : 

Dunedin - 2007 : Auckland, NZ) 

 

1.3 JOHN CAMERON (13 Jun 1814 : Cornaigmore – 25 Mar 1875 : Cornaigmore) married 

Catherine Campbell (14 Sep 1820 : Cornaigmore – 11 Jul 1873 : Cornaigmore) on 23 Oct 1850 in 

Cornaigmore. Family: AnnB,  CatherineC,  ArchibaldD,  CatherineE,  NeilF,  AlexanderG,  NancyH. 

1.3.1.  MERON CAMERON (05 Aug 1851 : Cornaigmore – 26 Jul 1924 : Tiree) married 

Lachlan McKinnon (18 Apr 1845 .: Cornaigmore – 23 Jan 1935) on 10 Sep 1877 in 

Cornaigmore. They had the following family:  

1.3.1.1 Catherine McKinnon (1874 - 1904) 

1.3.1.2 Mary McKinnon (1874 – 1939) married Alexander McDougall (04 Apr 1961 : 

Tiree - 19 Jun 1935 : Myrtle Bank, Oban) They had a son and a daughter: 

1.3.1.2.1  Lachlan McDougall (1907 - ?? -??) 

1.3.1.2.2 Mary McDougall ?? : Oban or Mull - ?? Oban) 

1.3.1.3 Nancy McKinnon (1877 ; Tiree – 21 Feb 1939 : Oban) 

1.3.1.4 Flora McKinnon (03 Mar 1878 : Tiree – Aug 1967 : Glasgow) married Peter 

McArthur (23 Jul 1876 : Logierait – 20 May 1947 : Glasgow) 1895 in Tiree. 

They had family:  

1.3.1.4.1 Mary Catherine McKinnon McArthur (25 Jul 1916 : Glasgow – Jan 

2001 : Glasgow) married Robert James William Brown (30 Nov 

1917 - Northampton – 1982 Northampton), on 14 Feb 1944 in 

Glasgow 

1.3.1.4.2 Anne McPhail McArthur (14 Jan 1920 : Glasgow - 18 Mar 1995 : 

Inverurie, Aberdeenshire) 

1.3.1.4.3 Donald McArthur (24 Mar 1915 : Glasgow - Jun 1983 : Glasgow). 

1.3.1.4 Margaret (Peggy Scarinish) McKinnon (20 May 1880 : Vaul, Tiree) married 

Malcolm McKinnon (1875 – 1956) in 1897 

1.3.1.5 Maggie McKinnon (Maybe duplicate) 

1.3.1.6 Charles (Dunmore) McKinnon (~ 1882 : Tiree – 05 Sep 1961 : Tiree)  married 

Mary Flora McKinnon (01 Jan 1887) – 24 Jan 1966 : Vaul, Tiree) Family: 

1.3.1.6.1 Iain McKinnon (1918 – Feb 1919) 
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1.3.1.6.2 Mary McKinnon (26 Jul 1910 – 09 Feb 1992 : Lochgilphead) married 

John Blair Leitch (15 Jun 1899 : Lochgilphead - Sep 1971 : 

Lochgilphead), 

1.3.1.6.3 Catherine McKinnon (01 Aug 1925 :Dunmore, Vaul – 19 Apr 2011 : 

Tigh a Rudha, Scarinish, Tiree) married Donald McDonald (28 Dec 

1914 : Brock, Tiree – 16 Jun 1970 : Oban) They had one son 

1.3.1.6.4 Iain McDonald (14 Mar 1949 : Vaul – 05 Sep 1976 : Fraserburgh, 

Aberdeenshire), 

1.3.1.6.5 Flora McKinnon (02 Oct 1913 :Govan, Glasgow) married Alex 

McNeill. 

1.3.1.7 John (Iain Hillcrest) McKinnon (~ 1884 : Tiree) 

1.3.1.8 Marion (Salum) McKinnon (1889 : Vaul - 23 Feb 1977 : Salum) married Hugh 

McLean (1884 : Caolas, Tiree – 08 mar 1949 : Salum) Family:  

1.3.1.8.1 Charles McKinnon McLean (1932 : Salum – Jan 1994 : Glasgow), 

1.3.1.8.2 Mary Ann McLean (Salum), 

1.3.1.8.3 Hugh (Brisbane) McLean 11 Feb 1928 : Salum – 04 Dec 2004 : 

Brisbane, Australia, 

1.3.1.8.4 Alasdair Alexander McLean (!8 Oct 1923 : Salum – Oct 1992 : 

Liverpool), 

1.3.1.8.5 Hugh Archie McFadyen McLean (05 Apr 1933 : Salum – 30 Dec 

2006 (Inverness), married Sheila McLean Hugh Archie McFadyen 

McLean, OBE, FRAGS was a much respected Chairman of the 

Crofters’ Commission and as an agricultural adviser in Northern 

Rhodesia (now Zambia) Africa. After leaving Oban HS, Hugh studied 

agriculture at Glasgow and Cambridge University, then joined the 

British Colonial Service from 1958-1967. Hugh and Sheila had a son 

and a daughter: 

1.3.1.8.5.1 Cameron Hugh McLean  

1.3.1.8.5.2 Carol Marion McLean 

1.3.1.8.6 Lachlan McLean (12 Apr 1925 : Salum – 1969 : Newton Abbot. 

(Hugh Archie and Lachlan are 3rd Cousins once removed of Alan 

Iain Cameron) 

1.3.1.9 Catherine (Kate Ruaig) McKinnon (1892 : Tiree – 1969 : Tiree) married Hugh 

Lamont (Tiree) 

1.3.1.10 Johanna (Cumnock) McKinnon (07 Jan 1893 : Tiree - ?? :1979 Auchinleck, 

Ayrshire) married Matthew Clifford in 1920 Family: 

1.3.1.10.1 Richard Clifford (1921-1962) 

1.3.1.10.2 Matthew Clifford (1926 – 1945) 
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1.4 SARAH CAMERON (30 Jun 1816 : Cornaigmore - 15 Aug 1892 Brim Brim, Victoria, 

Australia) married Alexander McPhee (1813 : Kilmallie - 21 Sep 1875 : Coleraine, Victoria 

Australia)They had the following family: 

1.4.1 Sarah McPhee 05 Jul 1842 : Kilmallie – 16 Mar 1882 : Coleraine, Victoria, Australia) 

married Alexander Gunning (1830 : Carrickfergus, Antrim, Ireland – 05 Oct 1885 : 

Brim Brim, Victoria) Family:  

1.4.1.1 Alexander Gunning (07 Aug 1860 – 22 Apr 1953 : Merino, Victoria, Australia) 

married Caroline Burchell (31 Jan 1877 : Carapook, Victoria, Australia - 10 Feb 

1944 : Merino, Victoria, Australia) in 1888 in Victoria. They had the following 

family: 

1.4.1.1.1  Sarah Gunning (1898 : Coleraine) 

1.4.1.1.2 Elizabeth Gunning. (Sarah and Elizabeth Gunning are 3rd Cousins 

one removed of Alan Iain Cameron) 

1.4.2 Christina McPhee (1847 : Corpach, Argyll – 02 Jul 1932 Colac, Victoria) married 

Robert Donner Rhodes (Jan 1846 : Tathwell, Lincolnshire, England  - 1907 : 

Princetown, Victoria). Family:  

1.4.2.1 James McPhee Rhodes (06 Jul 1875 : Condah, Victoria – 07 Jun 1958 : Colac, 

Victoria) 

1.4.2.2 Thomas McPhee Rhodes (01 Jan 1973 : Dundas, Victoria – 1951 : Flinders 

Island, Australia) 

1.4.2.3 Mary Ann Flora Rhodes (1878 : Cordah, Victoria : 1963 : Hay, NSW, Australia) 

1.4.2.4 Sarah Dianna Dinah Cis Rhodes (14 Sep 1876 : Cordah, Victoria –005 Jun 

1939 : Colac, Victoria) married Stephen Robe (1869 : Rokewood, Victoria – 29 

Aug 1952 : Colac, Victoria) Family: Alfred Henry Robe (18 Sep 1908 : Lavers 

Hill, Victoria – 1969 : Victoria), Stephen Robe (04 Jan 1901 : Camperdown, 

Victoria – 10 Aug 1960 Colac, Victoria) and Glyn Robe (12 Nov 1902 : 

Camperdown, Victoria – 15 Sep 1972 : Leeton, NSW) (These Robes are 13rd 

cousin once removed of Alan Iain Cameron) 

1.4.2.5 Catherine Jane Rhodes (24 Nov 1879 : Cordah, Victoria – 04 Jan 1966 : Colac, 

Victoria) married William James Robe (1865 : Pett, Victoria – 09 Mar 1939 : 

Lower Gellibrand, Victoria). Family: Elizabeth Stella Robe (12 Jul 1906 : Colac, 

Victoria – 28 Aug 1994 : Colac, Victoria), Maurice William Robe ( 1906 : 

Fottscray, Victoria – 12 Jan 1965 : Australia), Josiah Henry Robe (Aug 1909 : 

Beach Forest, Victoria – 31 July 1910 ; Colac, Victoria), Laurence James Robe 

(22 Sep 1907 : Australia – 28  Dec 1871 : 13 May 1991 : Colac, Victoria) and 

Robert Robe (1904 : Footscray, Victoria – 13 Jul 1956 : Colac, Victoria) 

1.4.2.6 Robert Alexander Rhodes (1866 : Victoria – 07 Aug 1952, Colac, Victoria) 

1.4.2.7 Mary Annie Flora Rhodes (1878 : Cordah – 1883 : Hay, NSW) 

1.4.2.8 Christina McPhee Rhodes (03 Mar 1882 : Briagolong – 1949 : Colac, Victoria) 

(2nd cousin twice removed of Alan Iain Cameron) 
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1.4.3 Mary McPhee (24 May 1837 : Kilmallie, Argyll – 21 Sep 1920 : Hamilton, Victoria) 

married John Cameron (1838 Anaheilt, Strontian, Kilmallie) Family: John Hugh 

Camerond. 

1.4.3.1 Hugh Cameron (06 Oct 1870 : Anaheilt, Strontian) 

1.4.3.2 Catherine Cameron (25 Feb 1874 : Acharacle) 

1.4.3.3 Alexander Cameron (13 Dec 1871 ; Aharacle) 

1.4.3.3.1 John Hugh Cameron (1877 : Strontian) married Marjorie 

Calder(1879 : Duthill, Inverness) on 24 Jan 1907 in Motherwell, 

Lanarkshire. They had a daughter – 

1.4.3.3.1.1  Mary McPhee Cameron (1915) who married John Graham 

Murray (1911 - 16 Feb 1955) in 1940 in Scotland 

1.4.4 John McPhee (No Information) 

1.4.5 Duncan McPhee (1856 : Newstead, Victoria  - 1916 : Casterton, Victoria) 

1.4.6 Catherine McPhee (1836 : Kilmallie – 20 Sep 1906 : Highton or Hamilton, Victoria) 

married Donald Campbell (1835 : Ardchattan - 11 Jun 1919 : Hamilton, Victoria)  They 

had family:  

1.4.6.1 Jessie Campbell (1871 : Hamilton, Victoria - 27 Sep 1950 : Hamilton, Victoria) 

1.4.6.2 Sarah Campbell (1868 : Hamilton, Victoria ; 1868 : Hamilton, Victoria) 

1.4.6.3 Donald Campbell (1874 : Hamilton, Victoria) 

1.4.6.4 Mary Campbell ( No information) 

1.4.6.5 Catherine Campbell (1863 : Hamilton – 20 Apr 1890 : Hamilton) 

1.4.6.6 Flora Campbell (1879 : Hamilton, Victoria – 1880 : Hamilton, Victoria) 

1.4.6.7 Alexander Campbell (1870) No further information. 

 

1.4.7 Flora McPhee (1839 : Kilmalieu, Inverness-shire – 21 Dec 1908 : Merino, Victoria) 

married Charles William Vickery Edwards (1832 : Hampshire, England : 26 Dec 1909 

: Merino, Victoria) They had 10 children :  

 

1.4.7.1 Richard Edwards (31 Jan 1870 ; Merino, Victoria – 20 Mar 1959) married 

Grace Maling (1875 : merino, Victoria - 11 Jul 1940 : Casterton, Victoria). They 

had  

1.4.7.1.1 Ethel May Edwards (07 Feb 1913 ; Dyers Creek Henty – 12 Jan 

1998,  Casterton) 

1.4.7.1.2 Theresa Dorothy Edwards (17 Aug 1918 : Casterton – 01 Apr 2006 : 

Casterton) 

1.4.7.1.3 Matilda Jane Edwards (04 Nov 1909 : Merino, Victoria : 20 Aug 

1991 : Warnambool, Victoria) married James Henry Doyle (1908 : 

Sandford, Victoria – 1945 : Casterton, Victoria) 

1.4.7.1.4 Flora Grace Edwards (02 Dec 1907 : Henty – 18 Aug 1945 : Merino) 
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1.4.7.1.5 Archer Edwards (1870 : Merino – 1870 : Merino) 

1.4.7.1.6 Robert Duncan Edwards (1880 : Merino, Victoria – 1967 : Geelong, 

Victoria) married Christine Brunton (1882 : Glenorchy, Victoria -1968 

: Geelong, Victoria).Robert Duncan Edwards served in the Boer War, 

Pte 826 5th Vic (Mounted Rifles)Contingent. Served in WWI with the 

AIF. 

1.4.7.1.7 Donald Edwards (1882 : Merino – 1882 : Merino) 

1.4.7.1.8 Catherine Edwards (1872 : Merino – 1935 : Merino) 

1.4.7.1.9 Charles Vickery Edwards (1975 – 1935 : Casterton, Victoria) 

married Mary Ann Fitzgibbon (1879 : Merino – 1957 : Casterton) 

They had 4 children  

1.4.7.1.9.1 Archibald Edwards (1900 : Merino – 1986 Coleraine) 

1.4.7.1.9.2 Robert Alexander Edwards (1906 : Merino – 29 Jul 1972 

Seymour, Victoria) married  Mary Ellen Fitzgerald (09 Jun 

1899 : Harrow, Victoria – 29 May 1991 : Coleraine). They had 

three children :  

1.4.7.1.9.2.1 Helen Edwards (16 Apr 1937 : Casterton – Dec 

2001) 

1.4.7.1.9.2.2 Allan Edwards (04 Mar 1934 : Casterton – 08 Jun 

1994 : Coleraine) 

1.4.7.1.9.2.3 Clair Edwards (23 Mar 1939 : Casterton – Jun 

1971 : Henty, Victoria). 

1.4.7.1.9.3 Cyril Victor Edwards(05 Aug 1911 : Merino, Victoria – 18 

Dec 1961 : Merino, Victoria) 

1.4.7.1.9.4 Catherine Christina Edwards (1898 : Merino, Victoria – 

1980 Casterton, Victoria) 

 

1.4.8 Annie McPhee (1861 : Bordertown, South Australia – 11 Dec 1888 : Brim Brim, 

Victoria) 

1.4.9 Archibald McPhee (06 Nov 1846 : Lochyside, Kilmallie - 27 Feb 1927 : Nhill, Victoria) 

married Hepzibah Bateson (04 Aug 1849 : Foxton, Cambridgeshire – 22 Mar : Nhill, 

Victoria). They had 7 children:  

1.4.9.1 Harriet E McPhee (08 Jun 1878 -12 May 1966) 

1.4.9.2 Hepzibah McPhee (1880)  

1.4.9.3 William A Mcphee (03 Aug 1883 – 17 Jun 1964 : Dimboola, Victoria) married 

Ellen Maria Harmer (07 Sep 1884 : South Australia – 13 Jun 1969 : Dimboola, 

Victoria) in Dimboola Victoria. 

1.4.9.4 Alexander John McPhee (04 Jan 1885 – 04 May 1963) 

1.4.9.5 Josiah T McPhee (1886)  
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1.4.9.6 Sarah Ann McPhee (01 Apr 1890 : Nhill, Victoria – 03 Jul 1977 : Cheltenham, 

Victoria) 

1.4.9.7 Clarance J McPhee (21 Jul 1900) 

 

1.5 MARGARET CAMERON (20 Nov 1818 : Cornaigmore 24 Oct 1862 : Moss, Tiree) married 

Duncan Henderson (02 Oct 1816 ; Grianal – 13 Apr 1900 : Moss) in 1853 in Tiree. Family:,   

1.5.1 Flora Henderson (07 Apr 1859 : Greenhill – 23 Sep 1923) married Donald Kennedy( ) 

Family:  

1.5.1.1 Donald Henderson (01 Dec 1888 : Moss - 09 Dec 1888 : Moss)  

1.5.1.2 Margaret Kennedy (30 Jun 1890 : Moss – 07 Jan 1957: Balemartin) married 

Archibald McFadyen (1898-28 Apr 1958) son of Euphemia McFadyen) on 19 

Apr 1927 at Moss, Tiree. 

1.5.1.2.1  They had a son Allan McFadyen. 

1.5.1.3 Archibald Henderson (17 Mar 1861 : Grianal – 16 Oct 1930 : Glasgow) married 

Catherine (Kate) Ross (16 Jun 1857 : Ullapool – 01 Apr 1944 Braes, Ullapool) 

on 29 Dec 1899 in 306 St Vincent St, Glasgow. They had family: 

1.5.1.3.1 John Henderson (02 Apr 1885 30 Nov 1966 { Oban, Argyllshire) 

married Margaret Ann McDonald (1896 – 02 Mar 1932 : 

Lochgilphead) on 11 Jun 1920 in Partick, Glasgow. His occupation – 

Carter, Family, 

1.5.1.3.1.1 Mary Ann Henderson (13 Jun 1924 Partick – 21 Aug 1998 : 

Glasgow) married John Lamont (17 Jul 1907 : Cornaigmore - 

22 Mar 1985) on 07 May 1948 : Glasgow : Family  

1.5.1.3.1.1.1 Margaret Ann Lamont (21 Aug 1949-08 Sep 

1949) 

1.5.1.3.1.1.2 Malcolm Henderson (05 Feb 1926 : Partick –Sep  

2003 : Lincolnshire) 

1.5.1.3.1.1.3 John McDonald Henderson (24 Dec 1920 : 

Partick, Glasgow -25 July 1994 : Glasgow) married 

Margaret Marjory Anderson (1920 2017) on 26 Jun 

1953 St Columba’s Church , Kelvingrove, 

Glasgow) His occupation – Sea Captain 

1.5.2 Archibald Henderson (20 Oct 1855- 11 Apr 1860 : Grianal) 

 

1.6 FLORA CAMERON (24 Jan 1821 : Cornaigmore - ) married Archibald Cameron (16 Feb 

1815 : Helipol – 10 Jul 1874 : Uisken, Isle of Mull) on 19 Jun 1850 in Tiree. Archibald is 

described as a crofter of 11 acres. FamilyMarionD,  MaryE..ChristinaF. 

1.6.1 Donald (23 Apr 1851 : Helipol : 01 Apr 1912 : Coleraine, Victoria) married Catherine 

Gavin Brodie (29 Oct 1899 – 04 Aug 1964 : Werribee, Victoria) on 14 Aug 1890 in Brit 

Brit Victoria, Australia. Family: 9 children 



40 

 

1.6.1.1 Donald James Cameron (18 Jun 1891 – 23 Jan 1915 : Coleraine, Victoria) 

1.6.1.2 Archibald Gavin Cameron (16 Oct 1899 : - 08 Aug 1964 : Thornbury, Victoria)  

1.6.1.3 Catherine Maria Cameron (14 Jun 1894 : Coleriane - 07 Nov 1971 : 

Melbourne). 

1.6.1.4 Jessie Margaret Cameron (09 Oct 1892 : Coleraine – 11 Nov 1959 : Melbourne) 

1.6.1.5 John Edward McLean Cameron (26 Jan 1904 : Coleraine - 21 Aug 1979 : 

Williamstown, Victoria)  

1.6.1.6 Violet Cameron (13 Aug 1911 : Coleraine – 14 Apr 2001 : Melbourne) 

1.6.1.7 William Hugh Cameron (26 May 1896 : Coleraine – 25 Feb 1966 : Heidelberg, 

Victoria, Australia) 

1.6.1.8 Keith Cameron (09 Jan 1908 : Coleraine – 23 Dec 1957, Williamstown, 

Victoria) married Ellen Jane Heaney (: Coleraine – 31 Dec 1993 : Altona, 

Victoria) in 1929 in Victoria. 

1.6.1.9 Heather May Cameron (30 Oct 1909 : Coleraine – 26 May 1995 : Melbourne) 

 

1.6.2 Hector Cameron (29 Mar 1854: Helipol, Tiree) 

1.6.3 Catherine Cameron (03 Nov 1856 : Balevoulin) married John Orr (19 May 1859 : 

Paisley - 12 Oct 1904 : Paisley). Family: 9 children  

1.6.3.1 John Fulton Orr (29 Jul 1886 : Paisley – 14 Sep 1949 : Paisley) married Helen 

Gregg Hamilton (1883). Family:  

1.6.3.1.1 John Fulton Orr (26 Jul 1905 : Paisley – 28 Nov 1965 : Paisley) 

1.6.3.2 Hector Cameron Orr (30 Aug 1888 : Paisley – 07 may 1973 : Glasgow) married 

Elizabeth Brookhouse (10 Jan 1897 : Glasgow – 16 Feb 1960 : Glasgow) 

1.6.3.3 Peter Curran Orr (11 Apr 1900 : Paisley – 09 May 1976 : Paisley) 

1.6.3.4 Archibald Cameron Orr (16 Aug 1875 : Paisley – 18 Jun 1960) 

1.6.3.5 Donald Cameron Orr (28 Jun 1881 : Paisley – 1951) 

1.6.3.6 Mary Fulton Orr (26 Aug 1891 : Paisley – 12 Nov1967 : Paisley) 

1.6.3.7 George Orr (19 May 1859 : Paisley – 12 Oct 1904 : Paisley) 

1.6.3.8 Robert Orr (01 Sep 1893 : Paisley, Renfrewshire) 

1.6.3.9 Fiona Cameron Orr (23 Oct 1883 : Paisley – 19 Jan 1904 : Paisley) 

 

1.6.4 Marion Cameron (1861 – 1861 : Balevoulin) 

1.6.5 Mary Cameron (06 Jul 1861 – 13 May 1919) married Peter Campbell (1854 :Neilston, 

Renfrewshire) Family:  

1.6.5.1 Archibald Campbell (1898 : Paisley) 

1.6.6 Christina Cameron (02 Jan 1866 : Tiree) 

 

1.7 Ann Cameron(13 Apr 1823 : Cornaigmore – 26 Oct 1975) married Archibald McInnes (14 Dec 

1820 : Tiree – 21 Aug 1902 : Tiree) on 29 Mar 1854 in Cornaig. Family:4  Margaret McInnesB,  

Donald McInnesC,  Hector McinnesD 
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1.7.1 John Campbell McInnes (17 Dec 1859 : Cornaigbeg – 18 Sep 1938 Glasgow) married 

Catherine McKinnon (28 Apr 1859 : Gortendonnel, Tiree - 1917) on 08 Mar 1862. They 

had 5 children:, Jessie McFadyen McInnesd,  Margaret Ann Walker McInnese 

1.7.1.1 Annie Cameron McInnes (1886 -1946) married John McLean (11 Sep 1882 : 

Argyll) on  17 Jul 1906  in Govan. They had six children: 

1.7.1.1.1  Jean McDougall McLean (4 Dec 1906 : Govan – 17 Aug 1999 : 

Newton Mearns) who married James Hall. 

1.7.1.1.2 Archibald McLean (1910 – 1960) married Elizabeth Sprott (1924) 

and they had 3 children 

1.7.1.1.2.1 John Cameron McLean (1947) married Jean Langlands 

Davidson (1949) on 20 Jun 1970 Scotstoun West Church 

1.7.1.1.2.2 Douglas Munro McLean (1949) 

1.7.1.1.2.3 Margaret Jane McLean 

1.7.1.1.3 Donald McLean (1916 -1991) and Isabella Burke (01 Jan 1916 -10 

Jan 1999 : Arbroath) 

1.7.1.1.4 Ian McLean (1924 – 1986) married Elizabeth Finlayson 

1.7.1.1.5 John McLean 

1.7.1.1.6 Catherine McLean 

1.7.1.2 Catherine McInnes married Angus McPhail and had one daughter  

1.7.1.2.1 Hannah Morrison McPhail (26 Feb 1866 : Govan) 

1.7.1.3 John McInnes (03 Jan 1897 : Plantation) married Helen Duffy and had one son 

1.7.1.3.1 Angus McInnes. 

1.7.1.4 Jessie McFadyen McInnes (1900 : Plantation) married Angus McPhail and had 

three children :  

1.7.1.4.1 Catherine McPhail, 

1.7.1.4.2 May McPhail, 

1.7.1.4.3 Angus McPhail.(1922 : Glasgow – 19 Feb 2014 : Eastwood & 

Mearns) married (? Laurent) who had a daughter  

1.7.1.4.3.1 Mairi McPhail. 

1.7.1.5 Margaret Ann Walker McInnes  

 

1.7.2 Margaret McInnes (1 Dec 1855 : Cornaigmore) married Donald McKinnon (~1845 : 

Mull -: ) on 16 Sep 1880 in Glasgow. Donald was the Headmaster at Cornaig School. He 

was the husband of a 1st cousin three times removed of Alan Iain Cameron. They had 

6 children:  

1.7.2.1 Ann Cameron McKinnon (19 Sep 1881 : Scarinish) Census, 1891 in 

Schoolhouse, Cornaigmore) 

1.7.2.2 Jean McKinnon (3 Jan 1883 : Cornaigmore) Census 1891 Schoolhouse, 

Cornaigmore 

1.7.2.3 Kate McKinnon (04 Jul 1884 : Cornaigmore) 
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1.7.2.4 Neil D McKinnon (25 Apr 1886 : Cornaigmore Schoolhouse) 

1.7.2.5 Margaret Ann McKinnon (07 Feb 1888. :Cornaigmore) 

1.7.2.6 Archibald Donald McKinnon (25 Dec 1889 : Cornaigmore - 1918 : France) 

1.7.2.7 Robina Stewart McKinnon (15 Feb 1892 : Cornaigmore) 

1.7.2.8 Donald James McKinnon (08 May 1894 : Cornaigmore) 

1.7.2.9 William Alexander McKinnon (25 Nov 1896 ; Cornaigmore) 

1.7.2.10 Alexander James Buchanan McKinnon (1889 -1918 : France) 

1.7.2.10.1.1.1 Donald McInnes .(27 Oct 1857 : Vaul) 

1.7.2.10.1.1.2 Hector McInnes (23 Nov 1862 : Heanish, Tiree – 

06 Dec 1862 : Heanish) 

 

1.8 Christina Cameron (28 Nov 1825 : Cornaigmore 22 Jan 1914 : Cornaigmore) Listed as aged 43 

and Pauper’s daughter on death certificate of her father Donald Cameron in 1868 

 

1.9 Hector Cameron(23 Mar 1828 : Cornaigmore - 1872)  married Janet McLean (25 Sep 1834 : 

Cornaigbeg -17 May 1915 : Glasgow) on 08 Mar 1858 in Tradeston, Glasgow. Janet, who was 

the wife of 3* uncle of mine was the daughter of Donald McLean and Rachel McKinnon 

(1815 -1872) Rachel’s parents were John McKinnon and Christy Cameron (1789-1855) 

Christy’s parents were Archibald Cameron (22 Dec 1767) and Margaret McLean (1767 : 

Cornaigbeg) who were my 4*great-grandparents. Hector and Janet had the following family:- 

1.9.1 Donald Cameron (07 Jan 61 :Tradeston – 03 Feb 1960 : Hastings, Hawkes Bay, NZ) 

married Marion McLean (1872 – 31 Jul 1948 : Hastings, NZ). They had the following 

family:  

1.9.1.1 Hector Cameron (11 May 1873 : Tradeston -25 Oct 1980 :Hastings, NZ) married 

Margery Jean Graham (1905 – 23 Mar 1962 : Hastings, NZ) in 1928 in New 

Zealand. 

1.9.1.2 Grace Cameron (21 May 1898 – 25 Oct 1980 : Hastings, NZ) 

1.9.1.3 Marion Cameron () married Sydney John Hogan in 1925 in New Zealand. I have 

no further information. 

1.9.1.4 Janet Cameron (1908  -05 Jul 1959 : Wairoa,NZ) married Don Parkhill in 1932 

in New Zealand. They had the following family:  

1.9.1.4.1 Chris Parkhill 

1.9.1.4.2 Mary Parkhill. 

1.9.1.5 John Cameron (1901 : Lochcarron, Ross & Cromarty) 

1.10.1 Catherine Cameron (1864 –  09 Apr 1954 : Wellington NZ) 

1.10.2 Mary Cameron (13 Jul 1866 : Tradeston, Glasgow) 

1.10.3 Alexander Cameron (~ 1869 : Glasgow) 

1.10.4 John Cameron (08 Dec 1870 : Tradeston - 09 Apr 1941 : Wellington) married Janet 

Mclean (21 May 1883 : Cornaigbeg, Tiree – 04 Dec 1960, Karori, Wellington, NZ) Janet 

was a grand daughter of Donald McLean and Rachel McKinnon, and related to me also 
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through her mother who was a daughter of John McKinnon and Christy Cameron. John 

and Janet had 2 sons :  

1.10.4.1 John Cameron (25 Jul 1914 – 06 Aug 2005: Wellington) 

1.10.4.2 Colin Cameron (28 Jun 1916 – 26 Aug 2005 : Wellington, NZ) 

1.10.5 Hector Cameron (11 May 1873 : Tradeston, Glasgow - ??) married Kezia Porter (1872 

: West Ham) They had the following family:  

1.10.5.1 Angus J Cameron (04, Mar 1902 : Plaistow Marsh, Essex- Mar 1997 : 

Ipswich, Suffolk) married Florence Brown (18 Apr 1904 – Jun 2004 Felixstowe) 

in 1895 with children, grandchildren and great grandchildren 

1.10.5.2 William Cameron (~1905 : Plaistow) No further information. 

 

1.11 Catharene Cameron (10 Aug 1831 : Cornaigmore) 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 9 

Descendants of Archibald Cameron (1767) and Margaret McLean (1767) 

My 4* Great grand-parents 

 

Archibald Cameron (22 Sep 1767 : Cornaigbeg) married Margaret McLean (1767 : Cornaigbeg) on 03 Feb 

1767 in Tiree. They were my 4 * great – grandparents. Archibald’s parents were Hugh Cameron (~1740) 

and Flory McLean (~1741). I am uncertain as to who Hugh’s parents were! Margaret’s parents were Charles 

McLean (1741 -1792) and Catharine McLean (1746 – 1792) Her father’s line link back to the McLeans of 

Ardgour. Archibald and Margaret had 9 children:  
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1. DONALD CAMERON (My 3* great -grandfather) (see Chapter 8) 

2. MARY CAMERON (29 Aug 1793 : Cornaigbeg) married John McKechnie (1792 : Inverness – 1869 : 

Glasgow) on 21 Sep 1823 in Glasgow. Family 

2.1. Flora McKechnie (1825 : Balfron) married John McEwan and had one child Flora McKechnie 

McEwan who married Alexander Semple and they had a son 

2.1.1. John Semple who married Mary Usher.  

2.1.1.1. Their son James married Catherine Livingstone and James and Catherine had a son  

2.1.1.1.1. John (04 Apr 1944). (I am unsure of these facts but perhaps they will help 

researchers) 

2.1.2Angus Cameron McKechnie (1829-1905) married Mary Bogle. 

3. ANNABELLA CAMERON (Nov 1800 : Cornaigmore - 24 Jan 1868 : Cornaigmore) 

 

4. MARION CAMERON (Mar 1807 : Cornaigmore -1841) and Charles McLean (Sep 1802 :Helipol - 

>1860) had the following family: 

4.1. Hugh McLean (12 Dec 1933 : Helipol - ??) and Ann McKinnon (10 Nov1834 : Kilmoluaig) were 

married on 06 Nov 1873 at Balinoe, Tiree.They had the following family: 

4.1.1. Marion McLean (1860 : Glasgow) 

4.1.2. David McLean (1865 : Glasgow) 

4.2 John McLean (14 Aug 1835 : Cruaghhoirtean) 

4.3 Neil McLean (Jan 1838 : Helipol) 

4.4 Donald McLean (29 Dec 1838 : Helipol) 

4.5 Archibald McLean (18 Apr 1840 : Helipol) 

5.  CHRISTY CAMERON (06 Apr 1789 : Cornaigbeg – 1855) married John Mckinnon (25 Nov 1780 : 

Balephetrish - ~ 1851) on 09 Aug 1809 in Balevoulin. Their family:- 

5.1 Flora McKinnon (03 Dec 1821)  

5.2 Alexander McKinnon (26 Dec 1811 : Tiree  - !3 Dec 1897 : Tiree) married Ann Stewart with the 

following family:.  

5.2.1 Mary McKinnon 

5.2.1 Christian McKinnon (~1845) 

5.2.2 John McKinnon 

5.2.3 Duncan McKinnon (1846 : Balevoulin - 1938 : Balevoulin) 

5.2.4 Flora McKinnon (1848 : Balevoulin – Jun 1902) and Alexander McLean (20 

Apr 1837 : Cornaigbeg- Nov 1899 : Cornaigbeg) had 7 children: 

5.2.4.1 Ann McLean (12 Oct 1872 : Cornaigbeg) 

5.2.4.2 Janet McLean (25 Dec 1874 : Cornaig – Feb 1943 : Wayland, Norfolk) 

5.2.4.3 Mary McLean (10 Aug 1876 Cornaigbeg ; July 1959 : Winnipeg) 

5.2.4.4 Hector McLean (11 May 1878 : Cornaigbeg – 30 Jul 1916 : Somme) 

5.2.4.5 Christina McLean (07 Apr 1881 : Tiree – Sep 1946) 

5.2.4.6 Alexander (Sandy) McLean (1883 : Tiree – Jul 1912) 
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5.2.4.7 Nancy McLean (1893 : Cornaigbeg – Jun 1958) 

5.3 Rachel McKinnon (06 Mar 1815 :Tiree - 26 Apr 1872 : Cornaigbeg) married Donald (Cubair) McLean 

(11 Oct 1802 : Kenovay – 28 Sep 1859 : Cornaigbeg). Donald was a shoemaker. His Gaelic bye-name 

suggests he was at one time a Cooper 

5.3.1 Janet McLean (1834 -1916) married Hector Cameron (1828 – 1972) (Hector is 

also a relative of mine {1st cousin 3*removed} as he is a grandson of Donald 

Cameron - my 3*great grandfather) They had the following family 

5.3.1.1 Donald Cameron (07 Jan 1861 : Tradeston – 03 Feb 1950 Hastings, 

NZ) married Marion McLean (1872 – 31 July 1948 : Hastings, NZ) 

They had family: 

5.3.1.1.1 Hector Cameron (1898-1980) married Margery Jean 

Graham in 1928 in New Zealand 

5.3.1.1.2  Grace Cameron (21 May 1898 – 25 Oct 1980 : 

Hastings, NZ) 

5.3.1.1.3 Marion Cameron married Sidney J Hogan in 1925 in 

New Zealand. 

5.3.1.1.4 Janet Cameron (1908 - 05 July 1959) married Don 

Parkhill in 1932 in NZ who had  

5.3.1.1.4.1 Chris and Mary Parkhill.(3rd Cousin 

once removed of Alan I Cameron) 

5.3.1.1.5 John Cameron (1901 : Lochcarron, Ross-shire) 

5.3.1.2 Catherine Cameron (29 Sep 1864 : Glasgow – 09 Apr 1954 : 

Wellington, NZ) 

5.3.1.3 Mary Cameron (1866 - ??) resident in Kinning Park at 1881 Census 

5.3.1.4 Alexander Cameron (1869 : Glasgow - ??) 

5.3.1.5 John Cameron (08 Dec 1870 – 18 Jul 1941 : Wellington, NZ) married 

Janet McLean c.21 May 1.883 : Cornaigbeg – 04 Dec 1960 : Karori, 

Wellington)  in 1915 in Inverness-shire. They had 2 sons :   

5.3.1.5.1 John(Jack) Cameron (25 Jul 1914 – 06 Aug 2005 : 

Wellington, NZ) 

5.3.1.5.2 Colin Cameron (28 Jun 1916 – 28 Aug 2005 : 

Miramar, Wellington) 

5.3.1.6 Hector Cameron (1873: Tradeston - ??) married Kezia Porter (~1872 : 

West Canning Town) They had two sons  

5.3.1.6.1 Angus J Cameron, (04 Mar 1902 : Plaistow Marsh, 

Essex- Jun 2004 : Ipswich) who married Florence 

Brown (18 Apr 1904 – Jun 2004 : Felixstowe) 

5.3.1.6.2 William Cameron (~ 1905 : Plaistow Marsh, Sussex) 
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5.3.2 John McLean (15 Sep 1836 : Kenovay - 15 Aug 1892 : Cornaigbeg) married 

Grace McKinnon (1846 : Tiree - 16  May 1905 : Cornaigbeg) in 1866. They had 12 

children: 

5.3.2.1 Alexander McLean (10 Oct 1867 : Tiree – 1945 : Ontario) married 

Isabella McEachran (1872 : Tiree – 10 Dec 1932 : Tiree) on 20 Jun 1909 in 

Cornaigbeg They had one son:  

5.3.2.1.1 John McLean (07 Nov 1909 : Tiree - 30 Jan 1978 : Oban) 

and one daughter:  

5.3.2.1.2 Mary Margaret McLean (13 Oct 1913 : Cornaigbeg – 19 

Aug 1938 : Cornaigbeg) 

5.3.2.2  John McLean (29 Jan 1869 : Cornaigbeg – 20 Apr 1875 : Cornaigbeg) 

married Annie W McLean 

5.3.2.3  Rachel McLean (13 Dec 1870 : Tiree – 25 may 1950 : Paisley) married 

Hector McKinnon(11 Dec 1862 : Portree -  : Paisley) on 28 Apr 1899 in 

Glasgow. Family:  

5.3.2.3.1 Donald McKinnon ( ) 

5.3 2.3.2 Kate McKinnon  (10 Mar 1907 – 24 Jun 1939) 

5.3.2.3.3  Grace McKinnon ( ) married ? Smith. Nurse registered 

with GNC for Scotland 28 Mar 1952 Paisley. 

5.3.2.3.4 John McKinnon (25 Jul 1899 : Tiree – 17 Jan 1954) 

5.3.2.3.5 Janet McSween McKinnon (31 Dec 1900 : Dunoon - 17 

Mar 1930) Nurse died in Dunoon from TB  

5.3.2.4 Marion McLean (05 Aug 1872 : Cornaigbeg – NZ) 

5.3.2.5 Mary Isabella McLean (21 Nov 1874 : Cornaigbeg – 01 Jan 1930 : 

Hastings NZ  married William Gardiner) son  

5.3.2.5.1 Alexander Gardiner (1902 : Maryhill – 1994) and 

daughter  

5.3.2.5.2 Lillias Imrie Gardiner (1901 : Maryhill). 

5.3.2.6  Catherine McLean (1878 : Cornaigbeg - 1961) married Archibald 

McEachern (19 May 1865 : Cornaigbeg – 19 May 1943 : Scotland) who is also a 

grandson of Donald Cameron and Catherine McKinnon (3* grandparents of 

Alan Iain Cameron) on 25 Nov 1908 in Scarinish. They had three children  

5.3.2.6.1 Archibald McEachern (06 Aug 1910 : Cornaigbeg – 03 

Mar 1946 : Scotland) 

5.3.2.6.2 Hugh McEachern (27 Jan 1912 : Cornaigbeg – 08 Dec 

1981 : Scotland) 

5.3.2.6.3 Mary McEachern (02 Apr 1913 : Cornaigbeg – 14 Oct 

1992) 

5.3.2.7 Donald McLean (23 May 1880 : Cornaigbeg,Tiree – 11 Nov 1945 : Perth 

Ontario) married Annie McLean (No more Information) 

5.3.2.8 Lucy McLean  ( ) 
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5.3.2.9 Janet McLean ( ) 

5.3.2.10 Flora McLean ( ) 

5.3.2.11 Duncan McLean (30 Dec 1887 : Cornaigbeg – 31 Jan 1939 : Hastings 

NZ) married Lucy Hodge (02 Dec 1899 :Rangitikei NZ – 08 May 1984: Roturua 

NZ) Family 6 children: 

5.3.2.11.1 Gordon McLean (07 Oct 1929 : Hastings NZ – 07 Dec 

2001 NZ) married Diana Lorraine Williams (20 Jan 1933 - 02 Mar 1990 

: NZ) 

5.3.2.11.2 Heather McLean (29 Apr 1933 : Hastings : NZ – 19 Sep 

2003 Geraldine, Canterbury NZ) married Robert Duncan Brown in 1980 

in New Zealand. 

5.3.2 11.3 Joy McLean ( ) 

5.3.2.11.4 Kenneth Allan McLean (17 Dec 1924 : Hastings – 05 Oct 

:Dannevirke, Hawkes Bay, NZ)  

5.3.2.11.5 Hugh Imrie Mclean (26 Mar 1928 : Napier, NZ – 27 Aug 

2012 : Kawerau, NZ) married Wendy Amelia Fennell 

5.3.2.11.6 Alex McLean 

5.3.2.12 Hugh McLean (29 Jul 1888 : Tiree – 06 Jun 1911 :Tiree) 

5.3.3 Alexander McLean (14 Oct 1838 : Tiree) 

5.3.4 Alexander McLean (19 Apr 1841- 02 May 1891 : Cornaigbeg) and Flora 

McLean (~ 1849 : Tiree – Jun 1902) had three children:  

5.3.4.1 Mary McLean,  (~ 1877 : Tiree) 

5.3.4.2 Ann McLean, (12 Oct 1872) 

5.3.4.3 Hector McLean (~ 1878 : Tiree – 21 Dec 1977 : Manitoba) married 

Christina McKinnon (28 Aug 1887 : Tiree – 21 Dec 1977 : Manitoba) on 21 

Aug 1907 in Canada with a daughter:  

5.3.4.3.1 Catherine McLean (1911 : Manitoba) 

5.3.5 Duncan McLean (19 Apr 1841 : Kenovay -  ??) married Mary Campbell (1843: 

Tiree). They had the folowing family:  

5.3.5.1 Donald McLean, (1872 : Tiree) married Mary McLachlan They had 

family 

5.3.5.1.1 Duncan McLean married Isabella Vivers,  

5.3.5.1.2 John McLean married Agnes B M Ballantine,  

5.3.5.1.3 Mary McLean, 

5.3.5.1.4 Alexander Mc Lean,  

5.3.5.1.5 William McLean,  

5.3.5.1.6 Donald McLean, 

5.3.5.1.7 James S McLean, 

5.3.5.1.8 Hugh McLean, 

5.3.5.1.9 Jeanie McLean,  

5.3.5.1.10 Robert McLean 
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5.3.5.2 Cirsty McLean (1877 : Tiree) No further information. 

5.3.5.3 Hugh McLean,  

5.3.5.4 Duncan McLean  

5.3.5.5 Alexander McLean, 

5.3.5.6 Ann McLean (30 Nov 1876 : Tiree – 05 Sep 1901 : Prince Edward Island, 

Canada) 

5.3.6 Archibald McLean 

5.3.7 Hector McLean 

5.3.8 Mary McLean 

5.3.9 Colin McLean (13 May 1849 : Tiree : 10 Apr 1940 : Tiree) married Margaret 

McArthur (1855-1918) on 07 Feb 1882. They had family: 

5.3.9.1 Alexander McLean (1884) 

5.3.9.2 Neil McLean (1884) 

5.3.9.3 Donald McLean (30 Aug 1886 : Cornaigbeg) 

5.3.9.4 Hugh McLean (1889 : Tiree) 

5.3.9.5 Hector McLean (1890) 

5.3.9.6 Alexander McLean (1892). 

5.4  Duncan McKinnon (03 Feb 1817 : Tiree) 

5.4.1 Donald McKinnon (22 Sep 1819 : Tiree – 25 Mar 1900 : Balevoulin) 

married Flora McKinnon (1830 : Kirkapol): There were 8 Children 

5.4.1.1 Donald McKinnon (1857 Balevoulin) 

5.4.1.2 Catherine McKinnon (21 Nov 1859 : Balevoulin – 21 May 

1921 : Balinoe) married Donald McLean (26 Jun 1848 : 

Balemeanach - 1912) on 30 Mar 1881 in Helipol Church. They 

had 8 children:. 
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5.4.1.2.1 Hector McLean (14 Aug 1882 : Balevoulin) 

5.4.1.2.2 Donald McLean (23 Apr 1884 : Balinoe – 05 

May 1911 : Balinoe) 

5.4.1.2.3 Jessie McLean (1895) 

5.4.1.2.4 Catherine McLean (1900) 

5.4.1.2.5 Duncan McLean (1887 : Blainoe) 

5.4.1.2.6 Donald McLean (13 Jun 1898 : Balinoe -11 

Jul 1898 : Balinoe) 

5.4.1.2.7 Neil McLean (04 Feb 1888 : Balinoe) 

5.4.1.2.8 Mary Flora McLean (Feb 1891 : Balinoe – 01 

May 1959) 

5.4.1.3 John McKinnon (21 Nov 1859 :Balevoulin – 29 Apr 1860 : 

Balevoulin) 

5.4.1.4 Duncan McKinnon (1862 : Balevoulin - 13 Jan 1885 : 

Balevoulin) aged 22 Meningitis. 

5.4.1.5 Christina McKinnon (04 Feb 1864 : Balevoulin – 25 Jun 1931 

: Balemartin) married Donald McFarlane (1848 – 1936) on 07 

Nov 1883 at Balevoulin. They had the following family:   

5.4.1.5.1 Rev Duncan McFarlane (05 Sep 1884 : 

Balemartine : 31 Dec 1957 : Oban) married 

Ann McDonald Laurie (1899 - 1995) on 30 

Nov  

5.4.1.5.2 Duncanina McFarlane (1886-1962) 

5.4.1.5.3 Donald McFarlane (1888) 

5.4.1.5.4 Donald Archibald McFarlane (1859 – 1977) 

5.4.1.5.5 Sarah MacFarlane (1892 – 1974) 

5.4.1.5.6 John McFarlane (24 Sep 1894 : Balemartin – 

22 Jul 1949 : Balemartin) 

5.4.1.5.7 Lachlan McFarlane (02 Sep 1898 : 

Balemartin – 13 Mar 1917 : on HMS Vivid) 

5.4.1.5.8 Donald Alexander (Alasdair) McFarlane {26 

Sep 1902 : Balemartin - 21 Jul 1960 : Glasgow) 

5.4.1.6 Mary McKinnon (1866 : Balevoulin – 11 Sep 1895 : Mount 

Gambier, South Australia) married Walter Brice (10 Oct 1871 : 

Mount Gambier – 1947 – Warambool, Victoria, Australia) on 

18th Dec 1891 in Mount Gambier. They had one daughter  

5.4.1.6.1 Mabel Sadie Gertrude Brice (28 Nov 1892 : 

Mount Gambier–  08 Jun 1983) 

5.4.1.7 Flora McKinnon (17 Mar 1869 : Balevoulin) 
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5.4.1.8 Margaret McKinnon (1871 : Balevoulin – 1946 : British 

Columbia) married John McKinnon (1863 : Kilmoluaig – 1907 

Fullarton, Ontario) in1893 in Tiree. They had 8 of a family as 

follows:  

5.4.1.9 John McKinnon () 

5.5.1.9.1Flora McKinnon (1896 ) aged 5 on arrival in 

Canada in 1901 

5.5.1.10  Neil McKinnon (1894 : Scotland - ??) married Lilian 

Florence McKinnon 1894 : England) They had three children.  

5.4.1.9.1 Robert Alexander McKinnon (1921 : 

Saskatchewan),  

5.4.1.9.2 Flora Wingaist McKinnon (1917 : 

Saskatchewan), 

5.4.1.9.3 Louis John McKinnon (1918 : Saskatchewan) 

5.4.1.10 Alexander McKinnon (1884 - ??) 

5.4.1.11 Angus McKinnon (1897 – 23 Nov 1947 : Coquitiam, BC) 

5.4.1.12 Donald 1 McKinnon (1900 : Kilmoluaig : ??) 

5.4.1.13 Donald 2 McKinnon ( ) 

5.4.1.14 Duncan McKinnon ( ) 

6 CATHERINE CAMERON (Sep 1803 : Cornaigbeg  - 12 Apr 1894 : Hay, Huron, Ontario) married 

Archibald McInnes (29 Mar 1798 : Kenovay,Tiree – 09 Dec 1885 : Usborne, Huron, Ontario) on 18 Dec 

1822. They had the following family:   

6.1 Hector McInnes (17 Nov 1823 – 19 Dec 1877 : Stonehouse, Lanarkshire) married Isabella 

Pollock (1828-1901) in 1848. They had family:  

6.1.1 John McInnes,  

6.1.2 Janet McInnes,  

6.1.3 Thomas Wilson McInnes,  

6.1.4 Isabella P McInnes,  

6.1.5 George McInnes, 

6.1.6 William McInnes,  

6.1.7 James McInnes,  

6.1.8 Christina McInnes, 

6.1.9  Hector McInnes 

6.2 Isabella McInnes (24 Mar1825 : Kenovay)  

6.3 Flora McInnes (26 Feb 1829 : Tiree – 18 Jun 1914 : Usborne, Huron, Ontario) married John 

Cameron (04 Dec 1816 : Govan – 21 Oct 1886 : Usborne, Huron, Ontario) 

6.4 Euphemia McInnes (16 Apr 1829 : Kenovay – 21 Nov 1911 : Huron, Ontario) married John 

P Cameron ( 1816 : Fortingall, Perthshire – 15 Dec 1902 : Hay, Huron, Ontario) 

6.5 John McInnes (12 Apr 1931 ; Tiree – 07 Mar 1904 : Elgin Co, Ontario) 
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6.6 Donald Cameron McInnes (Dec 1842 : Ontario -. 2 Sep 1925) 

6.7 Mary McInnes (16 Apr 1845: Lanark, Ontario - 1930) 

7 JOHN CAMERON (~1798 : Cornaigbeg - ??) married Catherine McLeod (24 1771 : Ruaig, Tiree). They 

had 9 children:  

7.1 Donald Cameron (Oct 1801 : Ruaig – 14 Feb 1866 : Ruaig) married Flora Mclean (13 Sep 1812 : 

Mannal- 13 Jan 1892 : Vaul) They had 8 children:  

7.1.1 Marion (23 Feb 1839 : Ruaig – 25 Mar 1901) married John Cameron (03 Nov 1838 

– 16 Mar 1908 : Kilmoluaig) on 16 Apr 1862 in Cornaig. Family:  

7.1.1.1 Ann (188) : Glasgow) 

7.1.1.2 Christina( 1870 : Glasgow 1951 : Wirral, Cheshire) 

7.1.1.3 Catherine( (1873) 

7.1.1.4 Marion (1875) 

7.1.1.5 Mary((1877 – 1891) 

7.1.1.6 Flora Ann (1882-1923) 

7.1.2 John Cameron (11 Dec 1844 : Mannal) 

7.1.3 Lily Catherine Cameron (19 Dec 1847) 

7.1.4 Lachlan Cameron (05 Apr 1850 : Mannal – 09 May 1889 Ormston, Quebec) married 

Agnes Scott Muir (1845 -1897). They had 8 children 

7.1.4.1 Margaret Cameron (July 30 1874 : Hinchinbrook, Quebec - ??) 

7.1.4.2 Helen Cameron (05 Jun 1876 : Hinchinbrook, Quebec - ??) 

7.1.4.3 Margaret Cameron (31 July 1876 : Ormstown, Quebec – 10 Feb 1961 : 

Ormstown, : Quebec) married Alexander Lindsay (1868-1943) on 29 Mar 

1893, Jamestown, Chateauguay, Quebec. They had four Children:  

7.1.4.3.1 Lachlan Cameron Lindsay (1895 -1961) 

7.1.4.3.2 Alexander Lindsay (1896 -1961), married Pearl Annie McKee 

and they had a son,  

7.1.4.3.2.1 Harold Alexander Lindsay (1934-1965),  

7.1.4.3.3  Agnes Grace Lindsay (1898 -1968) married Joseph Norman 

McClenaghan (1888-1944) on 02 Mar 1921 in Ormston, Quebec 

and they had FOUR sons  

7.1.4.3.3.1 Alvin David Alexander McClenaghan (1926-1995), 

7.1.4.3.3.2 William Lloyd McClenaghan (1928-2007), 

7.1.4.3.3.3  James Austin McClenaghan (1930 – 1971) 

7.1.4.3.3.4 Joseph Donald McClenaghan (1937-1937)  

7.5.4.3.4 Jennie Irene Lindsay (1900 -1980) 

7.1.4.4 Martin Angus Cameron (~1878 : Westmeath, Ontario) 
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7.1.4.5 Mary Agnes Cameron () 

7.1.4.6 Janet Scott Cameron (12 Jul 1883 : Hinchinbrooke, Quebec – 16 Jan 1887 : 

Hinchinbrooke, Quebec) 

7.1.4.7 Elizabeth Jean Cameron (03 sep 1885 : Hinchinbrooke, Quebec – 01 Mar 

1967 : Fort Covington, New York) married Stirret Cameron (1870-1948) 

with one son  

7.1.4.7.1 William Muir Cameron (1915-1916) 

7.1.5 Hector Cameron (26 May 1846 : Mannal – 1881 : Ruaig) 

7.1.6 Neil Cameron (23 Jun 1852 : Mannal) 

7.2 Allan Cameron (Jun 1805 – 28 Apr 1883 : Ruaig) 

7.3 Ann Cameron (1806 - ??) 

7.4 Mary Cameron (Jul 1807 - 28 Sep 1875 : Gott) 

7.5 Catharene Cameron (1803 14 Feb 1857: 1857) 

7.6 Lilias Cameron (1809) 

7.7 James Cameron (19 Jun 1813 – 17 Oct 1893 : Gott) 

7.8 Janet Cameron (Jul 1796 – 15 Aug 1862) 

7.9 Murdoch Cameron (Jul 1807 – 01 Sep 1878) 

 

8 EUPHEMIA CAMERON (23 Dec 1795 :Cornaigbeg - 31 Oct 1873 : Cornaigbeg) 
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MALCOLM CAMERON 

Malcolm Camerons descendant – Frank Cameron and I are related a distance of 2 genetic steps at 67 

chromosome markers (YDNA-67). Translated into a more understandable form, this means that Malcolm and I 

are 50% likely to be linked at no more than 6 generations ago and 90% likely to be within 12 generations ago. 

Malcolm Cameron (1834 – 1911) was the son of Donald Cameron (11 Jul 1804 : Kenovay, Tiree – 08 May1888 

: Ontario) and Effie McLean 1800 : Cornaigbeg – 20 Apr 1885 Ontario)  Effie, the daughter of John McLean 

(!778) and Flory McFadyen  was the sister of Archibald McLean who was the father of Neil McLean and 

grandfather of my great-grandmother FLORA ANN MCLEAN. That means that Effie McLean is a 4*great 

aunt of Alan Iain Cameron. I suspect that I can also trace a connection with Flory McFadyen. The links with 

Donald Cameron are more tenuous but seem to converge around a Duncan Cameron and the Lochiel family 

but these links have so far evaded my research. However, the extent of the chromosome overlap suggests that 

there is a relationship. Malcolm and Sarah emigrated to Canada and were married there. They were followed 

later by Malcolm’s parents – Donald and Effie., settling in Bruce Co., Ontario 

1. Malcolm Cameron ((27 Oct 1834 – 13 Mar 1911 :Port Elgin, Bruce, Ontario) married Sarah McLean (01 Jul 

1835 : Cornaigbeg – 07 Jul 1913 : Port Elgin, Bruce County, Ontario) in Guelph, Wellington, Canada West 

in 1854  They had family: 

1.1. Donald Malcolm Cameron 

1.2. Hugh Cameron (16 Jun 1856 : Bruce, Ontario – May 1932 : Russell, Manitoba) married Henrietta 

McNaughton (29 Jun 1860 : Bruce, Ontario – 03 Apr 1937 : Russell, Manitoba)  Family: 

1.2.1. Lizzie May Cameron(18 Jun 1888 : Bruce Co, Ontario – 04 Mar 1977 : Winnipeg) married 

George McLennan (1884 -1981 : Russell, Manitoba) on 19th March 1913 in Russell, Manitoba. 

Family: 

1.2.1.1. Lois Isabel McLennan (24 Sep 1913 : Shellmouth, Manitoba - : Roblin, Manitoba) 

1.2.1.2. Edith Beryl McLennan (1915-27 Feb 2007 : Winnipeg, Manitoba) 

1.2.1.3. Jean Evelyn McLennan ( 02 Feb 1918 – 08 Nov 1996 : Souris, Manitoba – 01 Jan 1996 

: Russell, Manitoba) 

1.2.1.4. Glen Murray (Dan) McLennan (04 Aug 1922 : Inglis, Manitoba – 20 Oct 1995 : 

Brandon, Manitoba) 

1.2.1.5. Margaret McLennan (18 Feb 1928 : Manitoba – 08 Sep 2014 : Nanaimo BC) 

1.2.1.6. Eric David Mclennan (1924 : Manitoba – 30 Mar1997 : Winnipeg) 

1.2.1.7. James McLennan 

1.2.2. James Hugh Cameron (29 Aug 1890 : North Cypress, Manitoba - 1981) married Edith May 

Paddock (1898 – 12 Jan 1979). On 22 Aug 1923 – Winnipegosis, Manitoba) His occupation in 

1916 on WW1 attestation papers was a schoolmaster. 

1.2.3. Daniel Malcolm Cameron (08 Jun 1893 : Maquette, Manitoba) 

1.2.4. Charles Stirton Cameron (11 Sep 1895 : Oberon, Manitoba – 02 Apr 1983) married Mary 

Isabelle Holmes (1902 -1967) on 29th Jul 1924 in Strathcona, Manitoba. His occupation was a 

Tinsmith as attested on WWI papers. 



54 

 

1.3. Archibald Cameron (11 Nov 1861 : Bruce Co. Ontario – 14 Apr 1901 : Brandon, Manitoba) married 

Janet (Jennie) Procter Lawson (27 Nov 1861 : Bruce Co., Ontario – 08 May 1940 : Shellmouth, 

Manitoba) on 02 Mar 1887 Family: 

1.3.1. Sarah Cameron (27 Dec 1887 : Paisley, Bruce Co, Ontario – 18 Apr 1977 : William’s Lake 

BC) married Joseph Thomas Norquay (06 Jan 1841 : Lisgar Manitoba 15 Jun 1962 : William’s 

lake, BC) Family: : Boulton, Manitoba) 

1.3.1.1. Archibald Cameron Norquay ( 

1.3.1.2. Charles Norquay 

1.3.1.3. Reginald Norquay 

1.3.1.4. Elsie Blanche Norquay 

1.3.1.5. Frank Norquay 

1.3.1.6. Keith Alexander Norquay 

1.3.2. Malcolm Cameron (04 Aug 1891 : Shoal Lake, Manitoba – 1967) 

1.3.3. Benjamin Franklin Cameron (Aug 1893 : Shoal Lake, Manitoba -1975) married Margaret 

(Maggie) Craig (1903-) in 1933 

1.3.4. Janet Rebecca Cameron (1902-1903 : Russell, Manitoba 

1.3.5. Christina Cameron (14 Aug 1889 : Sailcoats, Manitoba – 16 Apr 1975 : Vancouver BC) 

married Edward Roy Johnson (1800 -1935) 

1.3.6. Florence Cameron (1895 – 1987) 

1.3.7. Roger Cameron (09 Sep 1898 : Russell, Marquette – 30 Dec 1971 : Manitoba) 

1.3.8. Archie Bernard Cameron (1900 -1958) 

1.4. Mary Ann Cameron 

1.5. Charles Cameron 

1.6. Rebecca Cameron 
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APPENDIX 1 

Cousins 
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Appendix 2 

PLAN OF TIREE 

Plan of Tiree 
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APPENDIX 3 
What’s in a name? 
 

Is it McLean or MacLean? Both are, of course, correct but which should we use and is McLaine or Maclaine or 

even McClean or any of the many other variations acceptable. If we assume that the correct format is Mac 

(meaning in Scottish Gaelic “son of”) then we ought to call the females of this family Nic (meaning “daughter 

of”). Not only are there variations between families but also within family groupings. I have, therefore opted 

to use McLean in all occasions. I hope this does not offend! 

a. The same comes with another name found in both my maternal and paternal relatives and can be 

McFadyen, MacFadyen, McPhaiden, McFadden and many other variations. I have simplified all of 

those to McFadyen. The name apparently comes from son of Paidean.vi  Again I have chosen to use 

the form McFadyen to describe all of my relatives. 

b. The name Currie is also interesting in that it bears little resemblance to the original. The name 

derives from Murachadhvii who was a bard of Irish descent and eventually bard to the Lord of the 

Isles at his Finlaggan base in Islay. In time this abbreviated to the last part which became originally 

MacCurry and then Currie. Since all of these names were transmitted through the oral tradition, 

there was no accepted written form. To reinforce this, I was surprised to find that many of my 

ancestors right up to the late 19th century registered births marriages and deaths with a cross and a 

description by the registrar to say his (her) mark. 

c. The names Cameron and Campbell both derive from the Scottish Gaelic CAM meaning a twisted in 

the case of Cameron SRONviii (nose) and in the case of Campbell BEULix meaning mouth.  

d. The name Fletcher comes from 

 

e. The name Fraser appears to be a Norman name and may be derived from the French word fraise for 

strawberry and indeed that  

 

f. Again, you will see that the name of the island is sometimes Tyree and sometimes Tiree. I have used 

Tiree throughout. Apparently, there was a change by the Post Office in 1889 so as to avoid 

confusion with Tyrie in Aberdeenshire. The origin of the name is uncertain and has been suggested 

as Tir-i ie the land or larder of Iona “I”, pronounced “ee” being the Gaelic name for Iona. Another 

suggestion is Tir reidhx or the flat land relating to the topography of the island which is very low-

lying or Tir fo thuinn which means land under the waves. 
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Endnotes 
 

1 Keith Dash has Compiled a wonderful resource of births, marriages and deaths, censuses, grave records etc of Tiree. 

www.tireegenealogy.com 

1 I have use Family Tree Maker Mac 3 Platinum which is the UK 2017 edition and associated with Ancestry.co.uk 

1  Angus Martin : Kintyre, The Hidden Past John MacDonald, Publishers, Edinburgh page 50,51 

1 Paidean becomes MaPphaiden (son of Paidean) 

1 Murach’s son would be MacMhurich where the Mh has a “v” sound. So that Donald, son of Murdoch became Domhnall Mac 

Mhurich ic (Mh)urich where the (mh) in the brackets is silent which means Donald the son of Murdoch of the son of Murdoch. If you 

sound out the part in bold print, it sounds like ee-coo-rich from which it became Currie. 

1 In Gaelic when the noun SRON (nose) is qualified by the adjective CAM then the “S” becomes silent. Try saying it  

1 The inference being that the Campbells talked out of the side of their mouths (in other words were guilty of fabricating the truth).! 

1 (New Statistical Account, Tiree -1845, p. 195) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

file:///C:/Users/Alan/Downloads/www.tireegenealogy.com


59 

 

 

 

 

Endnotes 
 

1 Keith Dash has Compiled a wonderful resource of births, marriages and deaths, censuses, grave records etc of Tiree. 

www.tireegenealogy.com 

1 I have use Family Tree Maker Mac 3 Platinum which is the UK 2017 edition and associated with Ancestry.co.uk 

1  Angus Martin : Kintyre, The Hidden Past John MacDonald, Publishers, Edinburgh page 50,51 

1 Paidean becomes MaPphaiden (son of Paidean) 

1 Murach’s son would be MacMhurich where the Mh has a “v” sound. So that Donald, son of Murdoch became Domhnall Mac 

Mhurich ic (Mh)urich where the (mh) in the brackets is silent which means Donald the son of Murdoch of the son of Murdoch. If you 

sound out the part in bold print, it sounds like ee-coo-rich from which it became Currie. 

1 In Gaelic when the noun SRON (nose) is qualified by the adjective CAM then the “S” becomes silent. Try saying it  

1 The inference being that the Campbells talked out of the side of their mouths (in other words were guilty of fabricating the truth).! 

1 (New Statistical Account, Tiree -1845, p. 195) 
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Endnotes 
 

1. i Keith Dash has Compiled a wonderful resource of births, marriages and deaths, censuses, grave records etc of Tiree. 

www.tireegenealogy.com 

2. ii I have use Family Tree Maker Mac 3 Platinum which is the UK 2017 edition and associated with Ancestry.co.uk 

iii  

3. iv  Angus Martin : Kintyre, The Hidden Past John MacDonald, Publishers, Edinburgh page 50,51 

4. v Sain – a blessing 

5. vi Paidean becomes MaPphaiden (son of Paidean) 

6. vii Murach’s son would be MacMhurich where the Mh has a “v” sound. So that Donald, son of Murdoch became Domhnall 

Mac Mhurich ic (Mh)urich where the (mh) in the brackets is silent which means Donald the son of Murdoch of the son of 

Murdoch. If you sound out the part in bold print, it sounds like ee-coo-rich from which it became Currie. 

7. viii In Gaelic when the noun SRON (nose) is qualified by the adjective CAM then the “S” becomes silent. Try saying it  

8. ix The inference being that the Campbells talked out of the side of their mouths (in other words were guilty of fabricating 

the truth).! 
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9. x (New Statistical Account, Tiree -1845, p. 195) 


